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Chairman And Chief Executive’s Foreword

Chairman And Chief Executive’s Foreword
October 2016 will mark a milestone in Singapore’s journey to build a nation of lifelong
learners and a workforce that is adaptable, resilient and competitive. The restructuring
of WDA into two statutory boards – SkillsFuture Singapore (SSG) and Workforce
Singapore (WSG) – will enable both agencies to further sharpen their focus on skills
and employment respectively. SSG will take SkillsFuture forward and strengthen
the ecosystem of quality education and training. WSG will focus on transforming the
workforce and employment to meet the new challenges ahead.
It is with great pride that we reflect on WDA’s journey and accomplishments since its
formation in 2003. WDA has played a major role in helping individuals develop their
careers, and supporting enterprises to become more productive and manpower-lean in
a competitive global economy. In the past 13 years, we have introduced the Singapore
Workforce Skills Qualifications system in 2005, as well as various grants and subsidies
to empower individuals and enterprises with the necessary skills and training to build a
quality workforce.
Promoting Lifelong Learning and Developing a Career Resilient Workforce
Our journey to build a nation of lifelong learners was accelerated by the SkillsFuture
movement in 2015. We took a major step when we launched SkillsFuture Credit to provide
all Singaporean 25 years and above with a credit of $500 to offset their training costs.
This empowers Singaporeans to take ownership of their learning and career journey, and
realise their potential. Another key SkillsFuture initiative which was launched in FY15 was
the SkillsFuture Earn and Learn Programme, which aims to give fresh polytechnic and
ITE graduates a headstart in their careers through a work-study programme. WDA also
continued to support skills upgrading in FY15 through masterclasses and seminars and
provided support for career switchers by enhancing job placement schemes.
To build a strong Singapore core in our workforce, we significantly expanded the
range of Profession Conversion Programmes and also introduced the Career Support
Programme. Both programmes enabled mid-career conversions, and build an adaptable
and resilient workforce.

Mr Tan Pheng Hock
Chairman

Mr Ng Cher Pong
Chief Executive
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Chairman And Chief Executive’s Foreword
Partnering Enterprises to be Productive and Manpower-Lean
In 2015, we strengthened industry transformation through new schemes, such as the Lead
Enterprise Development scheme, to help SMEs become more innovative while enhancing
current ones such as OMNI-LITE and Mentorship for Accelerating Productivity. One of our
notable achievements in FY15 was linking up with the Lean Enterprise Institute to set up the
Lean Transformation Innovation Centre with the Singapore Institute of Technology. We also
partnered with other sector agencies, the industry and union to develop Industry Manpower
Plans to identify future jobs and skills to build a strong Singapore core of workers in the
respective sectors.
Partnering the CET Community to Develop a Future Ready Ecosystem
To ensure that we have a robust and quality CET training landscape, WDA launched
iN.LEARN, a SkillsFuture initiative to transform the delivery of CET to be flexible,
just-in-time and relevant to enterprises and individuals. Our Institute for Adult Learning is
at the forefront of these efforts and CET research is one of its core capabilities. It
co-organised the Researching Work and Learning Conference to uncover emerging
trend and insights relating to work and learning.
Creating a skilled and future-ready Singapore workforce
While much has been done in FY15, we will continue on this transformative journey to build
a forward-looking and future-ready workforce. We are excited by the formation of SSG and
WSG to take this journey forward.
We would like to thank our industry and training partners for their support in the past 13
years. Your partnership has been invaluable in realising our vision. We look forward to
strengthening this partnership as we build a strong Singapore workforce of lifelong learners
who are adaptive in a transforming economy. Last but not least, we thank all the past and
present WDA team for their dedication and passion in serving the needs of the nation to
build the Singapore workforce.
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WDA Board Members

Mr Tan Pheng Hock

Mr Ramasamy Dhinakaran

Dr Ahmad Mohamed Magad

Adjunct A/Prof Joe Sim

Chairman,
WDA Board
President & Chief Executive Officer,
Singapore Technologies Engineering Ltd

Deputy Chairman,
WDA Board
Managing Director,
Jay Gee Enterprises Pte Ltd

Group Managing Director,
II-VI Singapore Pte Ltd

Deputy Chief Executive,
National University Health System (NUHS)

Mr Patrick Tay Teck Guan

Mr James Wong Kok Onn

Assistant Secretary-General,
National Trades Union Congress
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Deputy Secretary (Policy),
Public Service Division,
Prime Minister’s Office
Secretary, Public Service Commission,
Public Service Division,
Prime Minister’s Office

Mr Ng Cher Pong

Mr Douglas Foo

Mr Tan Choon Shian

Professor Tan Thiam Soon

Chief Executive Officer,
Singapore Workforce Development Agency

Chief Executive Officer (Designate),
Workforce Singapore

Ms Grace Yow

Executive Vice President (Manufacturing)
and Managing Director, Fluidigm Singapore

Chairman,
Sakae Holdings Ltd

President,
Singapore Institute of Technology

Mrs Goh Mui Hong

Mr Lam Yi Young

Mr Tan Tong Hai

Mr Tang Chun Wai
Benjamin

President & Chief Executive Officer,
Singapore Technologies Asset
Management Ltd

CEO & Executive Director,
Starhub Ltd

Deputy Secretary (Policy),
Ministry of Education

President, Port Officers’ Union
Central Committee Member,
National Trades Union Congress

WDA Board Members, Committee, Corporate Governance, Management Team

Photo Of Board Members

Front row - seated (from left to right):
Tan Tong Hai, Tan Choon Shian, Ramasamy Dhinakaran, Tan Pheng Hock,
Grace Yow, Joe Sim

Absent from photo:
Ahmad Magad

Last row - standing (from left to right):
Douglas Foo, Tan Thiam Soon, James Wong, Goh Mui Hong, Ng Cher Pong,
Benjamin Tang, Lam Yi Young, Patrick Tay
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WDA Board Committees
Audit and Risk Committee (ARC)

Grants Committee (GC)

Investment Committee (IC)

Remuneration Committee (RC)

IT Committee (ITC)

CHAIRMAN
Mr Ramasamy Dhinakaran
Managing Director,
Jay Gee Enterprises Pte Ltd

CHAIRMAN
Mr Tan Pheng Hock
President & Chief Executive
Officer,
Singapore Technologies
Engineering Ltd

CHAIRMAN
Mrs Goh Mui Hong
President & Chief Executive
Officer,
Singapore Technologies Asset
Management Ltd

CHAIRMAN
Mr Douglas Foo
Chairman,
Sakae Holdings Ltd

CHAIRMAN
Adjunct A/Prof Joe Sim
Deputy Chief Executive,
National University Health System
(NUHS)

MEMBERS
Mr Lam Yi Young
Deputy Secretary (Policy),
Ministry of Education

MEMBERS
Prof Tan Thiam Soon
President,
Singapore Institute of Technology

Mr Tan Tong Hai
CEO & Executive Director,
Starhub Ltd

CO-OPTED MEMBER
Mr Yap Chuin Houi
Former Executive Director,
Reserve Management
Department,
Monetary Authority of Singapore

MEMBERS
Dr Ahmad Mohamed Magad
Group Managing Director,
II-VI Singapore Pte Ltd
Adjunct A/Prof Joe Sim
Deputy Chief Executive,
National University Health System
(NUHS)
Mr James Wong
Deputy Secretary (Policy),
Public Service Division Secretary,
Public Service Commission,
Prime Minister’s Office
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Mr Patrick Tay Teck Guan
Assistant Secretary - General,
National Trades Union Congress

MEMBERS
Mr Tan Choon Shian
Chief Executive Officer
(Designate),
Workforce Singapore
Mr Tang Chun Wai Benjamin
President,
Port Officers’ Union
Central Committee Member,
National Trades Union Congress
Ms Grace Yow
Executive Vice President
(Manufacturing) and Managing
Director, Fluidigm Singapore

CO - OPTED MEMBERS
Dr Chong Yoke Sin
Chief Executive Officer,
Integrated Health Information
Systems Pte Ltd
Mr Seah Chin Siong
Chief Executive Officer,
Singapore Pools
Ms Tan Swee Hua
Cluster Director (Culture,
Community & Youth/ Ministry of
Communications and Information),
Government Chief Information
Office, Infocomm Development
Authority of Singapore

WDA Board Members, Committee, Corporate Governance, Management Team

Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance Disclosure

Singapore Workforce Development Agency (WDA) is committed to high standards of corporate
governance. The WDA Board and Management have put in place a framework to ensure strict
adherence to good corporate governance practices.
Function of the WDA Board
The WDA Board provides guidance and advice to the WDA Management on all matters
under WDA’s purview, including its policy, regulatory and promotional roles. It also reviews
and approves the strategic plans and budgets of WDA. The WDA Board members come
from diverse backgrounds such as the unions, the private and public sectors. This allows us
to tap on their varied experiences, skills, knowledge and perspectives. Under the Singapore
Workforce Development Agency Act, the WDA Board shall comprise a Chairman, a Deputy
Chairman (if appointed), and not less than 8 but not more than 16 other members as
determined by the Minister for Manpower.The quorum at every board meeting of the Agency is
one-third of the total number of members.
WDA Board Committees
The Singapore Workforce Development Agency Act empowers the WDA Board to form
committees from among its own members or other persons to support the work of the
Board. The WDA Board Committees guide the development of specific areas of the WDA
and perform the necessary due diligence and reporting to the Board. Each committee is
headed by a designated member and abides by its terms of reference. The WDA Board
Committees are:

Investment Committee – The Investment Committee formulates investment policies and
guidelines that are in line with the approach set by the Supervising Ministry and are
compliant with the investment clause in the Skills Development Levy Act. It also manages the
surplus of WDA administered funds available for investment by reviewing the investment
strategy and performance of the fund managers from time to time as well as monitoring the
results of the investments.
Remuneration Committee – The Remuneration Committee sets human resource management
and development policies which includes approving staff remuneration policies, major changes
to schemes of service, early retirement and early release schemes as well as the appointment,
promotion and performance bonuses for senior management (i.e. Director and above) in WDA.
It also reviews and deliberates on staff appeals related to personnel matters.
IT Committee – The IT Committee provides strategic guidance and oversight for information
technology enablement, including scope, budget, and resources. It also provides guidance
on change management and communication, advisory on risk management and oversight on
information technology enablement to meet the expected performance and Key Performance
Indicators (KPI).

Audit and Risk Committee – The Audit and Risk Committee ensures that WDA has
a rigorous and robust system of internal controls. It reviews WDA’s risk assessment
and management system as well as the rigour of the internal control systems. Internal
and external auditors are also engaged to conduct audit reports on WDA’s work and
processes.
Grants Committee – The Grants Committee ensures that WDA has a robust financial
system to fulfill WDA’s mission. It provides advice on funding principles and grant
policies for WDA administered funds, covering both the Lifelong Learning Endowment
Fund and the Skills Development Fund, and approves funding proposals that are within
budget values specified by the WDA Board.
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Corporate Governance
Risk Management Practices And Internal Controls
WDA’s internal control system ensures that assets and resources are safeguarded and risk
management, control measures and procedures in place are adequate and effective. It also
ensures compliance with established policies and regulations, proper maintenance of
accounting records and reliability of the financial statements. The internal control framework
includes clearly defined authority and financial approval limits, reporting mechanisms,
comprehensive policies and procedures relating to operational and financial controls,
annual budgeting and monthly financial reporting on its operations. Under the Risk
Management Framework, WDA has developed a risk treatment plan to evaluate, mitigate and
monitor potential risk exposure under the following categories:
• Strategic – Risks that affect the long term direction of WDA
• Operation – Risks that affect WDA’s operations
• Financial – Risks that lead to loss of public funds or availability of financial resources
The risk items and mitigation measures are monitored regularly by WDA Management and
reported to the Audit and Risk Committee and the WDA Board. The WDA Management
is responsible to review and monitor the effectiveness of internal controls to safeguard
WDA’s interests, and will evaluate the need to implement other internal control policies
from time to time, aimed at compliance with all regulatory and statutory standards.

Internal and External Audit Functions

The Internal Audit Unit (IAU) functions independently and reports directly to the Audit and
Risk Committee and administratively to WDA’s Chief Executive. IAU provides assurance
to management through its evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
controls and processes, compliance with established policies, procedures and regulatory
requirements. Results of audits and recommendations for control enhancements are
promptly communicated to WDA’s Chief Executive. IAU also monitors the implementation
status of the audit observations. In addition, the external auditor performs the annual
statutory audit and its audit observations (if any) which are detailed in the Management
Letter which is reported to the Audit and Risk Committee (ARC). The ARC meets with the
external and internal auditors, without the presence of the management, at least once a
year. The financial statements and the accompanying announcements are presented to
the ARC for approval, before endorsement by the Board, to ensure the integrity of
information to be released.

12
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Business and Ethical Conduct

All staff of WDA have to adhere to high standards of professional integrity and personal
conduct. They are not to get involved in matters where a conflict of interest may arise and are
to declare the situation to their supervisor. Staff members are also subject to provisions of the
Official Secrets Act. They are required to sign a declaration upon recruitment to acknowledge
this provision and are reminded of this provision when they leave WDA’s service. To reinforce
WDA’s commitment to a culture of integrity and transparency within the organisation, WDA has
in place a whistle blowing policy and its reporting mechanism to facilitate the reporting of fraud
and wrongdoing of staff. A half yearly fraud report which lists both internal and external fraud
cases is submitted to the Audit and Risk Committee for its review and guidance.

Annual Reports and Dissemination of Public Information

WDA submits an annual report after the end of each financial year to the Minister for
Manpower, which outlines the activities of the WDA during the preceding financial year
and contains information relating to the proceedings and policy of the WDA as the
Minister may, from time to time, direct. WDA’s full year financial results are reported to
the Board and disseminated to the public via WDA’s corporate website. The website also
contains up to date corporate information such as Annual Report, latest developments
and press releases.

WDA Board Members, Committee, Corporate Governance, Management Team

Management Team

Human Resource
Division (HRD)
Serene Chiang

Ng Cher Pong
Chief Executive

Internal Audit
Unit (IAU)

Director

Operations Cluster (OC)
Tan Wee Beng

Industry & Workforce Cluster (IWC)
Goh Eng Ghee

Deputy Chief Executive

Corporate Marketing
& Comms Div (CMCD)
Patricia Woo
Director

Integrated Business
Services Div (IBSD)
Angelina Soh
Director

Sharon Tan

Director
(Compliance &
Enforcement)

Corporate Services
Div (CSVD)
Ow Seng Fong
Director

Michael Lim

Director (Designate),
CSVD (SSG)

Office of Lifelong
Learning (OLL)
Mohd Latiff Bin
Rahmat
Project Director

Shared Services
Mgmt Div (SSMD)
Ong Ai Ming
Business Technology Group (BTG)
Pang Poh Cheng
Senior Director

Capability Dev Div (CDD)
Richard Lee
Director (CDD/ SFC)

Winston Wong
Director (ILP)

Operations & Support
Div (OSD)
Teh Sim Seng
Director
Chief Information Officer

Enterprise
Development
Group (EDG)
Julia Ng

Careers Connect
Group (CCG)
Lynn Ng

Enterprise
Programmes Div (EPD)
Doris Kuek

Planning and Analysis
Div (PAD)
Ong Bee Lee

Creative & Professional
Services Div (CPSD)
Kenneth Wong

Programmes and
Engagement Div (PED)
Christopher Yu

Healthcare, Social &
Business Svcs Div
(HSBD)
Toh Swee Chien

Career Services
Div (CSD)
Francis Lee

Senior Director

Director

Director

Operations Planning
Div (OPD)
U Chee Lioy

Manufacturing Div (MD)
Ang Chai Soon

Security &
Infrastructure
Div (SID)
Teh Sim Seng

Director

Director

Chan Lee Mun

Chief Skills Officer

Deputy Chief Executive

Director

Director

Tan Choon Shian
Chief Executive (Designate), WSG

Group Director

Director

Director

Director

Training Partners
Group (TPG)
Cheung-Gog
Soon Joo

Skills Development
Group (SDG)

Campus Div (CD)
Andrew Ho

Skills Development
Div (SDD)
Loh Gek Khim

Group Director
Chief Research Officer

Director

Campus Div (CD)
Learning Innovation
Koh Tat Suan
Director

Director

Policy Group (PG)
Michael Fung
Group Director
Chief Data Officer

Resource Policy Div
(RPD)
Angela Tan
Director

Strategic Planning
Div (SPD)
Kenneth Sim
Director

Training Partners
Development Div
(TPDD)
Azzli Jamain
Director

Director

Tourism Div (TD)
Janice Foo

Director
Chief Information Officer

Institute for Adult Learning (IAL)
Hui Mei San
Executive Director

Research &
Innovation Div (RID)
Sim Soo Kheng
Director

Learning & Professional
Dev Div (LPDD)
Hee Soo Yin
Director

Learning Services
& Support Div (LSSD)
Dr Lee Tong Nge
Director
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Photo Of Management Team

Front row - seated (from left to right):
Tan Choon Shian, Ng Cher Pong
Middle row - seated (from left to right):
Ang Chai Soon, Azzli Jamain, Lynn Ng, Cheung-Gog Soon Joo, Serene Chiang,
Julia Ng, Pang Poh Cheng, Hui Mei San
Last row - standing (from left to right):
Andrew Ho , Richard Lee, Koh Tat Suan, Lee Tong Nge, U Chee Lioy, Kenneth Wong,
Patricia Woo, Ong Ai Ming, Sharon Tan, Hee Soo Yin, Doris Kuek, Angelina Soh,
Janice Foo, Sim Soo Kheng, Tan Wee Beng, Michael Fung, Angela Tan,
Ong Bee Lee, Christopher Yu, Winston Wong, Goh Eng Ghee, Teh Sim Seng,
Kenneth Sim
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Absent from photo:
Chan Lee Mun, Loh Gek Khim, Mohd Latiff, Francis Lee, Michael Lim,
Ow Seng Fong, Toh Swee Chien

WDA’S Achievements
( 2003 - 2016 )
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WDA’S Achievements (2003 - 2016)

WDA’S Achievements (2003-2016)
2004

2003

WDA established

WDA was established in
September 2003 to promote and
drive workforce development
in Singapore.

ESS (now ES WSQ)
developed

The Employability Skills System
was developed to offer English
literacy and numeracy training
to working adults who missed
out on their primary and
secondary education.

2005

WSQ and JRP launched

The Singapore Workforce Skills
Qualifications system was
developed to equip workers
with industry relevant
competencies to help them
remain competitive.

2007

10 WSQ and 17 CET centres established

Seventeen new CET Centres
were established.

Ten more Singapore Workforce
Skills Qualifications
frameworks2 were developed.

Job Re-creation Programme was
jointly launched by NTUC and
WDA to help companies re-design
jobs in ways that will improve the
job prospects and image of
the profession.

2008

Launch of IAL,
SPUR

The Institute for Adult Learning
was set up to enhance the
capabilities and professionalism
of adult educators.
The Skills Programme for
Upgrading and Resilience was
launched to help companies and
workers manage the economic
downturn and invest in
skills for recovery.

1
2

Food & Beverage, Landscape, Precision Engineering, Service Excellence and Tourism.
Aerospace, Community & Social Services, Generic Manufacturing, Healthcare Support, Infocomm Technology,
Marine Workplace Safety & Health, Process Manufacturing, Security and Workplace Safety & Health.
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2006

First CET Centre established, ADVANTAGE!
and five WSQ frameworks launched
Singapore’s first CET centre,
Singapore Institute of Retail
Studies was set-up in January
2006 to upgrade the skills of the
retail workforce.

2009

Three NCIs
appointed

At-Sunrice GlobalChef
Academy, CUGE and TMIS
were the first CET Centres to
be conferred the National
CET Institute status,
demonstrating their high quality
delivery and commitment
to support workforce
development programmes.

ADVANTAGE! was introduced
to encourage employers to hire,
train and retain older workers.

Five new Singapore Workforce
Skills Qualifications frameworks1
were launched.

2010

PRISM and WTS
launched

The Productivity Initiatives in
Services and Manufacturing was
launched to help companies
acquire the know-how to
become more productive
via different tools.
The Workfare Training Support
scheme was introduced to help
older lower-wage Singaporeans
upgrade their skills and improve
their employability.

WDA’S Achievements (2003 - 2016)

2013

2011

STEP launched

The Skills Training for Excellence
Programme was launched
to help PMEs deepen their
occupational skills, keep
up on the latest trends and
developments in their industries
and develop soft skills to edge
up in their careers.

2014

CET2020, Jobs Bank launched and
SkillsFuture Council formed

The Continuing Education
and Training 2020 Masterplan
was developed to support the
restructuring of the
economy and build a
career-resilient workforce.

The tripartite SkillsFuture Council
was formed to coordinate
CET2020 and implement the
Applied Study in Polytechnics and
ITE Review (recommendations to
develop an integrated system of
education, training and
career progression.

Jobs Bank was launched,
enabling Singaporeans to
explore and apply for jobs while
employers could use Jobs
Banks to access a larger pool of
locals for their manpower needs.

New CET campuses, WorkPro, and ETS
launched, with one millionth WSQ trainee

2012

CaliberLink
launched

CaliberLink was set up as a
one-stop service point for PMEs
to access a wide range of
services to stay employable and
progress in their careers.

Two new CET Campuses,
the Devan Nair Institute of
Employment and Employability
and the Lifelong Learning Institute,
which will serve to train 50,000
workers annually were set up.
WorkPro was launched to
encourage employers to recruit
and retain mature and
back-to-work locals.

2015

SkillsFuture Earn and Learn,
LED scheme launched

The SkillsFuture Earn and Learn
Programme was introduced
to give fresh ITE and polytechnic
graduates a headstart in their
careers by matching them to
suitable employers related
to their field of studies.

The LEAN Enterprise
Development scheme was
launched to aid SMEs to
become more productive and
innovative in the face of a
manpower-lean economy.

Enterprise Training Support
was launched to improve the
human resource and training
capabilities of companies.

Singapore Workforce Skills
Qualifications reached a
milestone when the one millionth
worker was trained.

2016
SkillsFuture Credit
Portal launched
and enhanced
employment support
for PMEs rolled out
SkillsFuture Credit was launched
with each Singaporean aged
25 years and above receiving a
credit of $500 to offset the cost
of their training. The scheme
aims to empower Singaporeans
in their lifelong learning.

New statutory
boards to sharpen
focus on skills and
employment

In October 2016, two new
statutory boards, SkillsFuture
Singapore and Workforce
Singapore, will be formed from
WDA to sharpen the focus on
skills and employment.

The Professional Conversion
Programme, Career Support
Programme and P-Max
were enhanced to aid more
employers and workers.
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Promoting Lifelong
Learning And Building
A Career Resilient
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Individuals: Promoting Lifelong Learning And Building A
Career Resilient Workforce
Cultivating A Culture Of Lifelong Learning
Immersing in a culture of productivity
for polytechnic students (6 Apr 2015)
Final-year business students learned more
about productivity through a 3-day workshop
by the Productivity Training Centre. The
workshop exposes students to concepts
and essential tools for improving productivity
at the enterprise level.

Initiatives to inspire lifelong
learning among Singaporeans
(7 Nov 2015)

To foster a culture of lifelong learning
among Singaporeans, the Lifelong
Learning Council unveiled two initiatives:
the LearnSG Seed Fund to grow
community-led learning initiatives and
the Lifelong Learning Festival which aims
to inspire individuals towards building a
culture of lifelong learning.

Encouraging lifelong learning in the
community (27 Jan 2016)
A $3 million LearnSG Seed Fund was
opened to groups of individuals, schools,
organisations and community groups to
grow community-led learning initiatives
that strengthen lifelong learning in
the community.

Developing the workforce through
SkillsFuture
More support for continuous learning
for mature Singaporeans (21 Sep 2015)
The SkillsFuture Mid-career Enhanced
Subsidy was launched, enabling Singaporeans
aged 40 and above to enjoy higher course
subsidies of up to 90% for WDA-supported
courses and MOE- subsidised full-time
and part-time courses.
Launch of the SkillsFuture Study
Awards (20 Oct 2015)
Early to mid-career Singaporeans can
benefit from a $5,000 monetary award to
deepen specialist skills for future economic
growth areas or areas of demand. It
also supports Singaporeans who already
have deep specialist skills to develop other
competencies.

Launch of SkillsFuture Credit
(1 Jan 2016)
Singaporeans aged 25 and above can tap
on SkillsFuture Credit for more than 15,000
courses across 57 functional areas to offset
their training cost.
Inaugural SkillsFuture Credit roadshow
(9 Jan 2016)
WDA launched the first ever SkillsFuture
Credit roadshow to raise awareness of
the scheme.

Enhanced SkillsFuture Qualification
Award (7 Dec 2015)
Singaporeans will receive multiple
SkillsFuture Qualification (then CET
Qualification) Awards from 1 January 2016.
Singaporeans who seek skills upgrading
through the Singapore Workforce Skills
Qualifications will receive a
cash award of $200 when they attain
certificate-level qualifications and $1,000
for diploma-level qualifications.
WDA Annual Report 2015/16
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Individuals: Promoting Lifelong Learning And Building A
Career Resilient Workforce
Promoting & Developing
Skills Mastery
‘Drive Your Topline’ masterclass for
F&B professionals (14 Apr 2015)
A series of masterclasses was held for
professionals in the F&B sector to equip
them with a diverse range of skills,
including productivity, business innovation
and design thinking to enable them to
transform the sector and reduce their
reliance on manpower.

Flying Singapore’s flag at 43rd
WorldSkills competition (29 Jul 2015)

Twenty-two Singaporeans participated in
the 43rd WorldSkills competition held in
Sao Paulo, Brazil and Singapore achieved
one silver and two bronze medals. WDA
sponsored the enhanced cash prizes for
medallists (e.g. up to $20,000 for Gold) and
Skills Commitment Award to recognise the
achievements of the winners.

Facilitating Entry
Into The Workforce
Deepening skills in cutting-edge
advanced manufacturing technologies
(22 Feb 2016)

Professionals in the manufacturing
sector deepened their skills in advanced
manufacturing techniques through a series
of customised masterclasses to enhance
their capabilities in emerging technologies
and keep them in touch with the rapid
changes in the manufacturing sector.

269,994

Local workers
trained under WSQ
in FY15

92%

Around
of trainees
indicated they were able to apply the skills learnt
through WSQ training and performed more efficiently
and effectively at work

20
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Launch of SkillsFuture Earn and Learn
Programmes for various sectors.
Food manufacturing Earn and Learn
Programme (29 Apr 2015)
Nineteen polytechnic graduates were
placed into 12 food manufacturing
companies and trainees underwent
structured training at their workplace,
using In-house Structured Training
Plans under the supervision of
company mentors and Singapore
Polytechnic facilitators.
Logistics Earn and Learn Programme
(7 Oct 2015)
A total of 39 polytechnic graduates were
placed into the Logistics Earn and Learn
Programme. The 12-month work-study
programme not only provides structured
on-the-job training, but includes project
work related to their company’s operations.

Infocomm Earn and Learn Programme
(3 Dec 2015).
The SkillsFuture Earn and Learn
Programme for Software Development
was rolled out by WDA and Nanyang
Polytechnic for the Information and
Communications Technology sector. The
programme saw positive interest with a
total of 27 polytechnic graduates enrolling.
More seamless work transition through
the Enhanced Internship integration
with SkillsFuture Earn and Learn
Programme for the retail sector
(26 Jan 2016)
ITE and polytechnic retail students can
experience a more seamless transition
into the workforce under the programme.
Students who complete at least 20 weeks
of Enhanced Internship may be offered
employment under the SkillsFuture Earn
and Learn Programme.

Individuals: Promoting Lifelong Learning And Building A Career Resilient Workforce

Individuals: Promoting Lifelong Learning And Building A
Career Resilient Workforce
Expanding Career Opportunities
Discovering the hospitality sector
(10 Apr 2015)

Singaporeans were able to experience
and learn about the various opportunities
available in the hospitality sector at the
‘Discover yourself in hospitality - make
Singapore smile!’ roadshow at Kallang
Wave Mall.

Providing more support for mature
PMEs (8 Jul 2015)

WDA rolled out the Career Support
Programme which aims to provide more
support for mature PMETs to be employed.
Under the programme, employers will be
eligible for a wage subsidy if they hire
Singaporean PMETs over 40 years old.

Opening up opportunities for
infant and early years educarers
(20 Aug 2015)

WDA and the Early Childhood
Development Agency launched a new
Place-and-Train Programme for educarers,
who work with infants and children between
2 months and 3 years old. Trainees
undergo a structured work-and-study
programme and employers also benefit from
wage and course fee grants.

Get The BIG BREAK!:
Networking-styled career fair for
Admarcom industry (23 Oct 2015)

The event aims to boost and develop quality
professionals for the Advertising, Marketing
and Communications industry and included
a career fair and industry talks where job
seekers could find out more about the jobs
available with insights on the industry.

9,811

Job seekers
placed by career
centres in FY15

93, 875

Low wage workers
benefited from
Workfare Training
Support in FY15

Expanding opportunities in the
healthcare sector (13 Feb 2016)

The Ministry of Health and WDA announced
the expansion of the Healthcare Professional
Conversion Programme to include new
degree programmes at the Singapore
Institute of Technology for Physiotherapy,
Occupational Therapy and Diagnostic
Radiography. Mid-career professionals
can select from five programmes to be
trained as enrolled nurse, registered nurse,
physiotherapist, occupational therapist and
diagnostic radiographer.
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Individuals: Inspiring Stories
A master to trainee technicians
See Siew Khim

See Siew Khim has over 18 years of experience in the aerospace
industry and her attention to detail and dedication has earned her
the respect of her fellow peers and industry recognition as a Master
Technician.
Read More

Discovering opportunities in iOS programming
Aizat Omar

Aizat Omar underwent the Advanced Certificate in Games Development
with DigiPen after leaving his previous job in a local bank to pursue
his passion in programming. He took on his first iOS programming
assignment at Swagsoft in 2011 when iOS was not well-known. Today, he
is an iOS guru and trainer.
Read more

Always ready for the next challenge
Khoo Wee Bin

Khoo Wee Bin has competed in more than 15 culinary competitions
since 1993 and was awarded the bronze medal at the 8th Food and
Hotel Asia International Salon Culinaire. Since then, he has not looked
back and now mentors and train others for competitions.
Read more

Following his heart to a new career
Khoo Liang Teck

It was very scary going back to school after 40 years,” recalled Khoo
Liang Teck of the brave step he took in 2010. That year, he had
chosen to undergo a certificate programme in nursing care and was
deeply excited at the prospect of beginning a new career in nursing.
Read more
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A learner, a trainer
Mahaboob Khan

Mahaboob Khan, a trainer with BCA says that more than ever, trainers
are needed to distill knowledge and provide face-to-face interaction
which online learning platforms cannot offer. A firm believer in lifelong
learning, he took up the Diploma in Adult and Continuing Education to
enhance his training and curriculum development skills.
Read more

From trainees to infant educarers
Nur Aida and Chen Yan Leng

Prior to being Infant Educarers, Yan Leng was a housewife while Aida
had just left her previous job. Both stumbled upon the WDA Traineeship
Programme at a job fair and the programme enabled them to gain
meaningful on-job-training to be infant educarers.
Read more

Powering on with renewed hope
Kuan Mun Fai

Kuan Mun Fai had worked for over 20 years in a multi-national company
when he was retrenched in January 2015. Through the Career Support
Programme, he found employment in Krislite as the head of their business
development unit.
Read more

Employers:
Partnering Employers
To Enhance Their
Competitiveness
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Employers: Partnering Employers To Enhance
Their Competitiveness
Encouraging Industry To Take Ownership To Advance Skills
In The Sector And Build A Pipeline Of Skilled Workers
Series of masterclasses for
employers in support of SkillsFuture
(20 May 2015)

A total of 50 employers participated in a
series of Enterprise Growth Masterclasses
which equipped employers with the
know-how in implementing progressive HR
practices such as skills-based development
pathways and recognising skills mastery.

From administrative to strategic
business partner: HR plays a critical
role in driving organisational success
(26 May 2015)

A study commissioned by the Ministry
of Manpower, International Enterprise
Singapore, SPRING Singapore and WDA,
put forward recommendations to strengthen
the capabilities of HR practitioners.

Professionalising the cleaning
industry (1 Sept 2015)

From 1 September 2015, cleaning companies
must meet the Progressive Wage Model
wage and training requirements for cleaners
who are Singapore citizens or permanent
residents. The new licensing regime
will level the playing field by imposing
higher standards of employment across
the cleaning industry and lead to more
professional and reliable services.
24
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Business forum to encourage
businesses to hire persons with
disabilities (26 Feb 2016)

The Inclusive Business Forum showcased
examples of inclusive hiring practices
to hire disabled persons. Organised by
SGEnable and WDA, the forum discussed
ways to create a conducive working
environment that leverages the strengths
and skills of persons with disabilities.

Identifying future development and
skills for sectors through Industry
Manpower Plans
Building a sustainable workforce for
the hotel industry (9 Oct 2015)
The first Industry (then Sectoral) Manpower
Plan for the Hotel sector was launched
to assist the industry to attract and retain
talents and develop a skilled workforce to
support the growth of the industry by
leveraging on SkillsFuture (e.g. Enhanced
Internships), and other initiatives.
Boosting manpower development for
the public transport sector (9 Nov 2015)
A series of industry-wide manpower
development initiatives to attract, develop
and retain talent for the Public Transport
sector was rolled out, which included the
provision of awards and grants and a
skills-based progression pathway for existing
engineers in the rail industry.
Building a future-ready workforce for
the retail sector with IMP (10 Dec 2015)
The Retail IMP was launched and aims
to build a future-ready workforce with the
skills required to support the Retail
sector’s transformation.

Employers: Partnering Employers To Enhance Their Competitiveness

Employers: Partnering Employers To Enhance
Their Competitiveness
Drive Companies To Take Ownership In Building
And Recognising Skills
Railway engineers to be accredited
under the Chartered Engineer
Programme (29 May 2015)
Railway engineers can look forward to
improving their skills and capabilities as
The Institution of Engineers, Singapore,
the Land Transport Authority, SBS Transit
Ltd and SMRT Corporation Ltd and WDA
established the Chartered Engineer
Programme for Railway Professionals.
A common set of engineering industry
standards for competencies will be created
to enable railway professionals to advance
their careers based on skills and mastery.

102

companies
benefited from
Enhanced Training
Support (ETS)
in FY15

Collaborating with employers
on SkillsFuture initiatives
(15 & 27 Jul 2015)
Two MOUs were signed with ST Engineering and YCH Group respectively.

93%

of companies
reported that WSQ training had positive outcomes
on their employee’s skills application, and helped their
employees work more efficiently and effectively.

ST Engineering		
ST Engineering committed to support
SkillsFuture initiatives such as the Earn
and Learn Programme, Study Awards,
Fellowships and Industry (then Sectoral)
Manpower Plan.

YCH Group
YCH Group committed to support
SkillsFuture initiatives such as the Earn
and Learn Programme, Individual Learning
Portfolio and SkillsFuture Credit. In addition,
YCH also pledged to transform its workforce
and enhance the quality of their trainers.
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Employers: Partnering Employers To Enhance
Their Competitiveness
Helping Enterprises To Be More Productive,
Innovative And Manpower-Lean
Assisting SMEs to transform and grow
with the Lean Enterprise Development
scheme (4 Sep 2015)
The Lean Enterprise Development
scheme was started to enable small
and medium-sized enterprises to be
more productive, innovative and
manpower-lean. These companies can
tap on grants for capability, manpower
and international market development.
More than 50 companies pledged their
support for productivity and manpower
lean initiatives (9 Sept 2015)
Singapore Productivity Association and
WDA announced plans for the Enhanced
Certified Productivity Programme and
together with the 54 companies pledged
their support to be manpower lean,
build a strong Singapore core in their
workforces and enhance the quality of
the entire workforce.
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Driving productivity in SMEs for
manufacturing and service sectors
with OMNI-LITE (8 Oct 2015)
Jointly developed by Singapore Institute
of Manufacturing Technology and WDA
for SMEs, the Operations Management
Innovation Lean Improvement Towards
Excellence programme is a compact
programme that allows SMEs to send
staff for training without placing excessive
demands on their manpower resources.

Enhanced programme to accelerate
productivity and innovation (5 Nov 2015)
Companies can boost their productivity
and innovation through the Mentorship
for Accelerating Productivity Programme
developed by Singapore Business
Federation and WDA. The programme
aims to help organisations identify
enterprise productivity gaps, as well as
support diagnostics and prioritise
improvement projects.

Boosting productivity and developing
a strong Singaporean core for Indian
restaurants (30 Oct 2015)
The Indian Restaurant Association
(Singapore) set up two consortia to operate
a Central Processing Unit which will handle
procurement, preparation and production
of food for 22 Indian restaurants. The
Association will rollout productivity initiatives,
skills development capability programmes
to improve the productivity and manpower
capability of the CPUs to create strong
Singapore core.

Greater support for SMEs to be
manpower-lean and develop a strong
Singaporean core workforce
(15 Jan 2016)
Nine trade associations and chambers
and industry partners were tasked to drive
adoption of manpower-lean solutions and
build a strong Singapore core under the
Lean Enterprise Development scheme.

Collaborating to drive manpower-lean
growth (10 Mar 2016)
The Singapore Institute of Technology,
Lean Enterprise Institute and WDA set up
the Lean Transformation Innovation Centre
to be a one-stop resource and solutions
centre to help local companies adopt
manpower-lean practices. The centre will
also outreach to companies to participate in
the Lean Enterprise Development scheme.

9,099

companies
benefited from the
Enhanced Training
Support scheme
in FY14

Employers: Partnering Employers To Enhance Their Competitiveness

Employers: Inspiring Stories
Investing in talents for the future
BreadTalk

Local company BreadTalk is one of the companies participating in the
SkillsFuture Earn and Learn Programme, where they will be investing
in young talents fresh from school to be part of their team.
Read More

A winning formula for SMEs and PMEs
Acesian Partners Ltd

Acesian Partners Ltd, a company in the environmental solutions sector
required the right talent with the necessary knowledge and expertise
to join them. Acesian signed up for the P-Max Place-and-Train
Programme to help them attract talents to join the company.
Read more

No longer manually driven
A&D Cleaning

Driven by the belief that the quality and standards of cleaning can be
greatly improved with the right attitude and mindset, A&D participated
in SME QIANG and identified several areas where they could improve
their efficiency.
Read more

Contributing to a skilled logistics workforce
YCH Group

YCH Group, Asia Pacific’s leading integrated end-to-end supply
chain management and logistics partner not only supported various
SkillsFuture initiatives, but also enabled the Logistics Professional
Conversion Programme through the Supply Chain and Logistics
Academy.
Read more here and here

Developing HR talents and capabilities
CA Practice PAC

CA Practice PAC, a public accounting entity has always upheld the
importance of human capital in an organisation, but the firm could not
bridge the challenges in identifying the staff’s competency gaps. CA
tapped on Enterprise Training Support scheme to enable them to
develop a customised audit programme.
Read more
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CET Ecosystem:
Partnering The CET
Community To
Develop An Innovative
And Responsive
CET Ecosystem
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CET Ecosystem: Partnering The CET Community To Develop
An Innovative And Responsive CET Ecosystem
CET System: Enhancing Our CET
System And Infrastructure Supports
Enhancing training and development for
the social service sector (10 Oct 2015)
The Ministry of Social and Family
Development and WDA launched two new
WSQ qualifications at the Social Service
Institute. The two qualifications provide
a training and progression pathway for
individuals interested to pursue the social
work profession. Graduates of the Diploma
WSQ can apply for the Bachelor of Social
Work offered by SIM University.

Researching work and learning
conference (9-11 Dec 2015)
Organised by the Institute for Adult Learning,
National Institute of Education and SIM
University, the ninth edition of this leading
international conference hosted 250 local
and international delegates and discussed
emerging trends, insights and perspectives
relating to work, learning and globalisation.

Training Providers: Raising The
Quality Of Training Providers
iN.LEARN 2020 to drive learning
innovations in Continuing Education
and Training (28 Oct 2015)
iN.LEARN 2020, a major initiative of
SkillsFuture was launched to transform
the design, development and delivery of
CET to build a pervasive learning culture
that is flexible, just-in-time and relevant
to individuals and enterprises. It aims to
improve capacity for learning innovation and
transform blended learning complemented by
online and workplace learning.
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CET Ecosystem: Partnering The CET Community To Develop
An Innovative And Responsive CET Ecosystem
Adult Educators: Enhancing The
Capabilities Of Adult Educators
Enhancing career facilitation and
development (13 Jul 2015)
The dual-certificate Advanced
Certificate in Career Development
Facilitation/ Global Career Development
Facilitation-Singapore was introduced
under SkillsFuture to equip entry level
career development practitioners with the
relevant knowledge and skills to effectively
provide career guidance to adult workers
and students to manage their career and
learning development.
New postgraduate programme for
CET professionals (27 Oct 2015)
The Master of Arts in Professional
Education (Training and Development)
was unveiled to help CET professionals
who wish to move to more professional
roles such as CET Consultancy and
leadership positions in academic
institutions and schools.
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Plans For FY 2016
Building a career-resilient and future
ready workforce. We will roll out relevant
SkillsFuture initiatives to support individuals
in their lifelong learning journey and to help
them attain mastery of skills. Examples
of new initiatives include SkillsFuture
Fellowships and the Individual Learning
Portfolio. We will also recognise supportive
and exemplary employers who have made
significant efforts in employee training and
upgrading through the SkillsFuture Employer
Awards. More SkillsFuture Earn and Learn
Programmes will also be launched.
Opening opportunities for the workforce.
We will create more opportunities for
Singaporeans to be placed into jobs
by expanding programmes such as
Professional Conversion Programmes and
P-Max Programme to place PMETs into
SME companies. The enhanced Career
Support Programme and Reskilling for Jobs
are available to help more workers. We
will also seek to improve and recalibrate
WDA’s role in career services, employment
facilitation and also provide a suite of
e-career services to individuals (especially
PMETs). To encourage greater adoption
of age-friendly work practices, WDA will
enhance WorkPro to provide greater support
to companies. Building on our tripartite
efforts, the Progressive Wage Model for
Security will be launched in Sept 2016.
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Working with industry to identify and
develop future skills for industry growth
and competitiveness. We will continue
working extensively with lead agencies,
industry players and unions to work on
Industry Manpower Plans (e.g. Healthcare
will be launched in Oct 2016). We will also
collaborate with Tan Tock Seng Hospital
to improve innovation and workforce
transformation.
Building lean enterprises and strong
Singapore core of workers. We will
continue building on our efforts in the
Lean Enterprise Development Scheme by
organising the LED Symposium (Nov 2016)
and bring on-board more LED Multipliers
into the scheme. The Food Manufacturing
sector will also showcase the Food
Innovation Resource Sharing Technology
Platform in Jan 2017.
Enhancing CET system for quality
manpower outcomes. In May 2016, the
Singapore Bus Academy was launched
as a one-stop training and career
service centre to attract and develop bus
professionals. Singapore Polytechnic
was appointed as CET Centre for the
Development Apprenticeship Programme
to attract more talents to join the Chemicals
sector. Our Adult Educators will benefit
from the Adult Educator’s Professionalism
initiative and Global Career Development
Facilitator Programme in Oct 2016
and learn about new teaching trends/
methodologies at the Adult Learning
Symposium in Nov 2016.

Promoting lifelong learning and social
recognition of skills. We will work closely
with the Lifelong Learning Council to
formulate its vision and strategy, and
implement initiatives to bring us on par with
advanced societies with strong lifelong
learning cultures, such as Finland and the
Sweden, in the medium term.
Building our capabilities in career
coaching. As part of our continuous effort
in professionalising and enhancing the
delivery of our career services, WDA will
develop our career coaches. A Career
Coach Track with a structured progression
pathway will be developed to support the
on-going development of our officers,
helping each job role to acquire the
necessary work competencies, progressing
from foundational courses to development
of specific skills.

Reflections of WDA
( 2003 - 2016 )
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Personal Reflections From Our Staff
Goh Eng Ghee

Sng Chye Beng

“We had no name, when
a new stat board was
formed in ‘03 to look into
the workforce scene.
From MOM, Spring and
other places we gathered
at OMB. Back then the
‘Boulevard’ did not even
exist. It was called the
‘new NTUC building
at Shenton.”

2003is

“The single most
significant achievement
of WDA is the creation
of the WSQ credential
and training system for
CET/working adults. One
key feature of the WSQ
system is the accessibility,
ie admission criteria not
based on educational
qualifications, which was
the case for MOE CET
training up till then.”

2005

WSQ and
JRP launched

WDA ed
form

2004

ESSped
lo
deve

Christopher Yip

“We made history
when PSD accepted
WPLN credentials in
lieu of GCE ‘O’ levels.”
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Tracy Lee

“The WSQ System is
one of the key initiatives
that has enabled CET
and competency - based
credentials to be properly
recognised. I am very
honoured to have
contributed to the
development of the WSQ!”
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Ang Chai Soon

Christine Loke

“I was seconded to SIRS to
set up the first career and
training guidance centre at
SIRS. It was meaningful as
it provided a seamless
services of career and
training guidance and
placement services to those
who attended WSQ Retail
Training at SIRS.”

First CET Centre
established,
ADVANTAGE! and
five WSQ
frameworks
launched

2007

10 WSQ and
17 CET Centres
established

“With the push on
productivity at the
workplace, PRISM was the
key push factor to meet
this need.With an ageing
population, WTS helped to
encourage the workforce to
upgrade their skills to stay
relevant and employable.”

2009

Three NCIs
appointed

New CET
campuses,
WorkPro,
and ETS
launched, with
one millionth
WSQ trainee

2010

2011

Launch of
IAL, SPUR

“We had to turnaround
a new Wafer Fabrication
framework for the
Electronics industry
which was badly
impacted during SPUR
in a matter of a few
months. The work was
intense and challenging
but the teamwork,
eventual outcomes and
feedback from partners
was gratifying.”

2013

PRISM and
WTS launched

2008

Jesscia
Methodlus

“WSQ was introduced
in 2005. The
achievement of one
millionth WSQ
trainee is a
testimony of
public’s acceptance
towards the benefits
of WSQ training.”

Aslyati Kaffrowl

2006

Launch
of STEP

Aslyati
Kaffrowl
“Being the main
driver of workforce
development, the setup
of IAL was timely as
the competency levels
of adult educators are
crucial in disseminating
and facilitation
of skills and knowledge.
Investment in skills
training during downtime
helped companies to
prepare their works for the
economic recovery.”

Julia Ng

Angelynn See Tow

2012

Launch of
CaliberLink

Tey Ling Ling

“The most fulfilling
moment in my
career to be able to
help Singaporeans
gainfully employed
and trained for a
better tomorrow.”

Jane Lee

“The start of
hot-desking
concept and the
camaraderie built
up through open
sharing in a cosy,
home-like office.”

“I am privileged to have
co-led or implemented
pioneering initiatives for
WSQ, SPUR, WorkPro, ETS,
ELP, LED and AnG. WDA
has continued to future proof
itself and stay relevant and
responsive for the employers
and the workforce, all
thanks to the unwavering
commitment from bosses
and comrades from
WDA who firmly believe
in the cause of
workforce development.”

“It has been an eventful
journey. As a young
organisation, we went
through many changes
[and] also many
challenges – SARS, global
financial crises, and new
CET frameworks. But
similar to what we are
building our Singapore
workforce to be, we have
stayed focussed and
resilient throughout, and
emerged stronger
each time. With this spirit,
we will do well in SSG
and WSG!”

2016

SkillsFuture Credit
Portal launched
and enhanced
employment support
for PMEs rolled out

2014

Launch of
CET2020,
Jobs
Bank and
formation of
SkillsFuture
Council

n
rpe
ha ent
S
to
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B
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uto ls
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S
n
w
Ne cus o
Fo

2015

SkillsFuture
Earn and
Learn,
LED Scheme
launched

6
201

Ong Ai Ming
“Very proud to have been part
of this journey, which has not
exactly ended, but has instead
taken on a new twist as
another exciting and important
journey ahead for
all of us.”

Charlotte George
“The launch of Job Banks was massive, I
was personally elated with a strong sense of
accomplishment. WDA was now one of the
fore runners in offering job matching through
a national job portal promoting self-reliance
among job seekers. One of the valuable
lessons to teach job seekers is to enable them
to become more self-reliant.”
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Our Experiences In WDA - In A Word
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SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
AGENCY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

The attached draft financial statements, which have
been prepared by management of the Group and the
Company, are subject to changes that may arise from
the resolution of outstanding audit matters which are
set out in the attached appendices and comments and
adjustments from our engagement quality assurance
review. The draft audit report included in the attached
financial statements should not be provided to any
other party or used for any purpose without our prior
written permission.

Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Report and Financial Statements
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statement By Singapore Workforce Development Agency
In our opinion,
(a)

the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
set out on pages 42 to 97 are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Workforce Development
Agency Act, Cap. 305D (the “Act”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”) so as to present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Group and WDA as at 31 March 2016 and the financial performance of the Group,
changes in equity of the Group and WDA and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended on that date;

(b)

the receipt, expenditure, investments of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets by WDA during the financial year have
been in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and

(c)

 roper accounting and other records have been kept, including records of all assets of WDA whether purchased, donated or
p
otherwise, in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

On behalf of the Singapore Workforce Development Agency and its subsidiaries

Tan Pheng Hock
Chairman

Singapore 22 July 2016
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Ng Cher Pong
Chief Executive

Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of The Board Of
Singapore Workforce Development Agency
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which comprise the statements of financial position of the Group and WDA as at 31 March 2016, the statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity of the Group and WDA and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 42 to 97.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the
Singapore Workforce Agency Act, Cap. 305D (the “Act”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”), and for such
internal controls as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with
Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
WDA Annual Report 2015/16
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Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of The Board Of
Singapore Workforce Development Agency
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive
income and statement of changes in equity of WDA are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and SB-FRS so as
to present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group and WDA as at 31 March 2016 and the financial performance
and changes in equity of the Group and WDA, and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Management’s Responsibility for Compliance with Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Management is responsible for ensuring that the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets,
are in accordance with the provisions of the Act. This responsibility includes implementing accounting and internal controls as management
determines are necessary to enable compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s compliance based on our audit of the financial statements. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. We planned and performed the compliance audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets, are in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.
Our compliance audit includes obtaining an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the receipts, expenditure, investment of
moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets; and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements from noncompliance, if any, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. Because of the
inherent limitations in any accounting and internal control system, non-compliances may nevertheless occur and not be detected.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on management’s
compliance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of The Board Of
Singapore Workforce Development Agency
Opinion
In our opinion:
(a)

the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets by WDA during the year ended 31
March 2016 are, in all material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and

(b)

 roper accounting and other records have been kept, including records of all assets of WDA whether purchased, donated or
p
otherwise, in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Public Accountants
and Chartered Accountants
Singapore
22 July 2016
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statements Of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2016
Group
Note

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

6

84,621,334

80,488,509

69,863,867

72,141,778

Trade and other receivables

7

16,653,783

7,292,141

23,643,533

10,001,020

Deposits and prepayments

8

7,217,224

4,192,785

7,825,289

4,083,935

108,492,341

91,973,435

101,332,689

86,226,733

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Deposits and prepayments

8

1,515,894

3,046,138

1,695,545

3,440,638

Property, plant and equipment

9

242,598,329

234,235,161

242,569,731

234,231,721

Intangible assets

10

56,094,108

33,345,955

56,094,108

33,345,955

Total non-current assets

300,208,331

270,627,254

300,359,384

271,018,314

Total assets

408,700,672

362,600,689

401,692,073

357,245,047

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statements Of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2016
Group
Note

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Other payables

14

55,587,001

42,584,575

52,870,998

41,169,876

Provision for contribution to consolidated fund

16

5,170

5,170

5,170

5,170

340

-

-

-

Provision for reinstatement costs

15

1,881,095

-  

1,881,095

-  

Government grants received in advance

11

21,322,294

19,643,829

16,709,723

15,111,896

78,795,900

62,233,574

71,466,986

56,286,942

Income tax payable

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provision for reinstatement costs

15

3,135,418

4,810,080

3,135,418

4,810,080

Deferred capital grants

13

295,379,474

264,259,316

295,379,474

264,259,316

298,514,892

269,069,396

298,514,892

269,069,396

Total non-current liabilities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statements Of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2016
Group
Note

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

Capital and other funds
Capital Account

18

7,872,073

7,872,073

7,872,073

7,872,073

Share capital

19

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

24,181,992

24,100,222

22,704,674

22,883,188

Accumulated surplus (deficit)
  - General Fund
  - Restricted Funds

20

Total capital and other funds
Total liabilities and equity

(665,185)

(675,576)

1,132,448

1,132,448

31,389,880

31,297,719

31,710,195

31,888,709

408,700,672

362,600,689

401,692,073

357,245,047

Net assets (liabilities) of trust funds
Skills Development Fund

21

1,287,506,732

1,212,441,670

1,287,506,732

1,212,441,670

Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund

22

7,066,833

2,915,398

7,066,833

2,915,398

National Productivity Fund

23

(5,950,051)

-

(5,950,051)

-

SkillsFuture Jubilee Fund

24

20,084,916

-

20,084,916

-

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statements Of Comprehensive Income
Year Ended 31 March 2016
Group
Note

2015/2016

2014/2015

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

Operating income

25

1,354,492

4,918,835

6,273,327

1,232,494

5,494,540

6,727,034

Other income

26

225,901

12,278,649

12,504,550

113,551

8,827,039

8,940,590

Other gains (losses)

27

51,325

588,975

640,300

(51,592)

815,369

763,777

Amortisation of intangible assets

10

(1,402,692)

(5,440,851)

(6,843,543)

(1,398,805)

(1,741,882)

(3,140,687)

Depreciation expense

9

(917,427)

(12,665,084)

(13,582,511)

(744,373)

(10,214,894)

(10,959,267)

Staff costs

28

(27,608,793)

(56,940,394)

(84,549,187)

(39,050,622)

(40,777,522)

(79,828,144)

(74,226,016)

(65,428,280)

(139,654,296)

-   

(109,546,211)

(109,546,211)

Expenditure

Grant disbursements
Rental expenses on operating leases

(4,570,628)

(3,155,648)

(7,726,276)

(4,315,667)

(2,947,817)

(7,263,484)

Professional services

(6,584,356)

(17,750,891)

(24,335,247)

(7,114,148)

(15,650,797)

(22,764,945)

Maintenance expenses

(6,290,761)

(13,174,170)

(19,464,931)

(6,875,443)

(8,798,187)

(15,673,630)

(606,861)

(2,103,947)

(2,710,808)

(678,462)

(2,868,690)

(3,547,152)

Public relations

(554,809)

(1,353,595)

(1,908,404)

(981,597)

(6,113,835)

(7,095,432)

Travel expenses

(466,545)

(404,723)

(871,268)

(280,498)

(311,785)

(592,283)

-

(1,059,775)

(1,059,775)

-   

(924,214)

(924,214)

(666,149)

(3,117,306)

(3,783,455)

(1,314,182)

(2,062,268)

(3,376,450)

Suppliers and material

Agency fee paid to CPF Board
GST expenses

(1,060,986)

(2,491,068)

(3,552,054)

(894,697)

(2,323,657)

(3,218,354)

Course-related trainers’ fees

Temporary staff cost

-

(5,471,489)

(5,471,489)

-   

(5,526,367)

(5,526,367)

Cancellable operating lease

(906,838)

(2,071,065)

(2,977,903)

(1,366,608)

(1,261,485)

(2,628,093)

Others
Deficit before government grant

(1,171,129)

(1,171,393)

(2,342,522)

(972,011)

(933,032)

(1,905,043)

(125,402,272)

(176,013,220)

(301,415,492)

(64,692,660)

(196,865,695)

(261,558,355)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statements Of Comprehensive Income
Year Ended 31 March 2016
Group
Note

2015/2016

2014/2015

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

Grants from government

11

123,504,381

158,307,371

281,811,752

60,709,470

183,566,726

244,276,196

Deferred capital grants amortised

13

1,979,661

17,716,835

19,696,496

1,753,679

12,231,840

13,985,519

125,484,042

176,024,206

301,508,248

62,463,149

195,798,566

258,261,715

81,770

10,986

92,756

(2,229,511)

(1,067,129)

(3,296,640)

Surplus (Deficit) before contribution to consolidated fund
Contribution to consolidated fund

16

-

-

-

-

-

-

Income tax expense

17

-

(595)

(595)

-

-

-

81,770

10,391

92,161

(2,229,511)

(1,067,129)

(3,296,640)

Net surplus (deficit), representing total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statements Of Comprehensive Income
Year Ended 31 March 2016
WDA
Note

2015/2016

2014/2015

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

1,232,494

5,494,540

6,727,034

Operating income

25

1,354,492

4,918,835

6,273,327

Other income

26

273,437

10,887,408

11,160,845

113,550

6,818,009

6,931,559

Other gains (losses)

27

51,325

588,975

640,300

(51,592)

815,369

763,777

Amortisation of intangible assets

10

(1,402,692)

(5,440,851)

(6,843,543)

(1,398,805)

(1,741,882)

(3,140,687)

Depreciation expense

9

(917,427)

(12,659,262)

(13,576,689)

(744,373)

(10,213,934)

(10,958,307)

Staff costs

28

(27,016,884)

(55,774,324)

(82,791,208)

(39,050,622)

(39,771,404)

(78,822,026)

(74,226,016)

(65,516,709)

(139,742,725)

-   

(108,616,965)

(108,616,965)

Expenditure

Grant disbursements
Rental expenses on operating leases

(5,172,452)

(4,314,214)

(9,486,666)

(4,995,344)

(3,537,729)

(8,533,073)

Professional services

(6,584,356)

(17,609,192)

(24,193,548)

(7,114,148)

(15,547,614)

(22,661,762)

Maintenance expenses

(6,582,056)

(10,955,478)

(17,537,534)

(7,151,656)

(7,351,079)

(14,502,735)

Suppliers and material

(611,474)

(1,287,663)

(1,899,137)

(708,918)

(1,889,083)

(2,598,001)

Public relations

(554,809)

(1,175,317)

(1,730,126)

(981,597)

(5,995,155)

(6,976,752)

Travel expenses

(465,924)

(401,589)

(867,513)

(280,498)

(309,497)

(589,995)

-

(1,059,775)

(1,059,775)

-   

(924,214)

(924,214)

Agency fee paid to CPF Board
GST expenses

(666,149)

(3,117,306)

(3,783,455)

(1,314,182)

(2,062,265)

(3,376,447)

(1,060,986)

(2,223,235)

(3,284,221)

(894,697)

(2,175,365)

(3,070,062)

Course-related trainers’ fees

-

(5,470,929)

(5,470,929)

-   

(5,526,367)

(5,526,367)

Cancellable operating lease

(906,838)

(2,071,065)

(2,977,903)

(1,366,608)

(1,261,485)

(2,628,093)

Temporary staff cost

Others
Deficit before government grant

(1,173,747)

(1,134,051)

(2,307,798)

(979,963)

(920,053)

(1,900,016)

(125,662,556)

(173,815,742)

(299,478,298)

(65,686,959)

(194,716,173)

(260,403,132)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statements Of Comprehensive Income
Year Ended 31 March 2016
WDA
Note

2015/2016

2014/2015

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

Grants from government

11

123,504,381

156,098,907

279,603,288

60,709,470

182,484,333

243,193,803

Deferred capital grants amortised

13

1,979,661

17,716,835

19,696,496

1,753,679

12,231,840

13,985,519

125,484,042

173,815,742

299,299,784

62,463,149

194,716,173

257,179,322

(178,514)

-

(178,514)

(3,223,810)

-

(3,223,810)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(178,514)

-

(178,514)

(3,223,810)

-

(3,223,810)

Deficit before contribution to consolidated fund
Contribution to consolidated fund
Net deficit, representing total comprehensive loss for the year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Statements Of Changes In Equity
Year Ended 31 March 2016
Accumulated surplus (deficit)
Capital Account

Share capital

General fund

Restricted funds

Total

$

$

$

$

$

7,872,073

1,000

26,329,733

391,553

34,594,359

-

-

(2,229,511)

(1,067,129)

(3,296,640)

7,872,073

1,000

24,100,222

(675,576)

31,297,719

-

-

81,770

10,391

92,161

7,872,073

1,000

24,181,992

(665,185)

31,389,880

7,872,073

1,000

26,106,998

1,132,448

35,112,519

-

-

(3,223,810)

-

(3,223,810)

7,872,073

1,000

22,883,188

1,132,448

31,888,709

-

-

(178,514)

-

(178,514)

7,872,073

1,000

22,704,674

1,132,448

31,710,195

Group
At 1 April 2014
Net deficit for the year,representing total comprehensive loss for the year
At 31 March 2015
Net surplus for the year, representing total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 March 2016
WDA
At 1 April 2014
Net deficit for the year, representing total comprehensive loss for the year
At 31 March 2015
Net deficit for the year, representing total comprehensive loss for the year
At 31 March 2016

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows
Year Ended 31 March 2016
2015/2016
$
Operating activities
Deficit before government grant
Adjustments for:
     Amortisation and depreciation
     Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
     Interest income
     Provision for reinstatement costs
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital

Group

2014/2015
$

(301,415,492)

(261,558,355)

20,426,054
909
(666,521)
206,433
(281,448,617)

14,099,954
73,022
(275,915)
4,777
(247,656,517)

(9,074,096)
(1,494,195)
13,002,426
(279,014,482)

4,534,313
1,800,327
4,818,839
(236,503,038)

(255)

(926,760)
-

(279,014,737)

(237,429,798)

Investing activities
     Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
     Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
     Interest received

(51,687,841)
149,557
378,975

(46,187,905)
573,819
215,965

Net cash used in investing activities

(51,159,309)

(45,398,121)

Financing activities
Grants received from government
Unutilised grant returned

334,819,229
(512,358)

297,266,142
(2,500,000)

Net cash from financing activities

334,306,871

294,766,142

     Trade and other receivables
     Deposits and prepayments
     Other payables
Cash used in operations
Contribution to consolidated fund
Income taxes paid
Net cash used in operating activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Note 6)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 6)
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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4,132,825

11,938,223

80,488,509

68,550,286

84,621,334

80,488,509

Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Notes To Financial Statements
31 March 2016

1

GENERAL
The Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”) was established in The Republic of Singapore under the Singapore
Workforce Development Agency Act, Cap. 305D. The address of the registered office and principal place of operations of the
Agency is No. 1 Marina Boulevard #16-01, One Marina Boulevard, Singapore 018989.
The principal activities of WDA are:
(a)

to serve as the national body in the areas of adult continuing education and training, and the facilitation of employment
and re-employment, and to advise and make recommendations to the Government on matters, measures and regulations
connected with such areas, including formulation of policies, and the provision of infrastructure and facilities in relation to
such areas;

(b)

to promote, facilitate and assist in the development of adult continuing education and training so as to enhance the
competitiveness and employability of the Singapore workforce;

(c)

to collaborate with industries and economic agencies to identify and promote the enhancement of industry specific skills;

(d)

to promote the development, competitiveness and employability of the Singapore workforce through coordination with
economic agencies;

(e)

to support, facilitate and assist in the re-employment of unemployed or retrenched persons through job referral, retraining,
upgrading of skills and other employment facilitation efforts;

(f)

to enhance, promote and support the use and improvement of best practices in the management of human capital and
workforce skills development in Singapore;

(g)

to encourage, promote and facilitate the development of the human resources industry in Singapore;

(h)

to promote, facilitate and assist in the identification, development and upgrading of skills and competencies required of
the workforce to support Singapore’s economy;

(i)

to support, direct, encourage and undertake research in adult continuing education and training;
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Notes To Financial Statements
31 March 2016
(j)

to direct, promote and facilitate the upgrading of adult continuing education and training infrastructure, and the upgrading
of professional standards of adult trainers;

(k)

to establish and implement regulatory policies, codes of practice, strategies, measures or any other requirements so as
to enhance the professional standards of adult continuing education and training offered in Singapore;

(l)

to administer programmes for adult continuing education and training;

(m)

to undertake the promotion of lifelong learning and to create, foster and encourage public awareness and understanding
of the importance of lifelong learning;

(n)

to administer the Skills Development Fund (the “SDF”) in accordance with the Skills Development Levy Act (Cap. 306);

(o)

to provide financial support by way of grants, loans or otherwise so as to give effect to the functions and objects of the
Agency;

(p)

to undertake, direct and support the analysis and dissemination of labour market information and trends to the public;

(q)

to represent the Government internationally in respect of matters relating to adult continuing education and training and
public employment services; and

(r)

to carry out such other functions as are imposed upon the Agency by or under the Act or any other written law.

There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 12 to the financial statements.
The financial statements of WDA for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 were authorised for issue by members of the Board on 22
July 2016.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Notes To Financial Statements
31 March 2016

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 ASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - The financial statements are prepared in
B
accordance with the historical cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”), including Interpretations of SB-FRS
(“INT SB-FRS”) and Guidance Notes.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
 air value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
F
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability which market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
 air value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
F
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of SB-FRS 102 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of SB-FRS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in SB-FRS 2 Inventories or value in use in SB-FRS 36 Impairment of Assets.

	
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:
•

 evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
L
at the measurement date;

•

 evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
L
either directly or indirectly; and

•

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Notes To Financial Statements
31 March 2016
ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS – On 1 April 2015, the Group has adopted all the new and revised SB-FRSs
and INT SB-FRS and SB-FRS Guidance Notes that are effective from that date and are relevant to its operations. The adoption
of these new/revised SB-FRSs, INT SB-FRSs and SB-FRS Guidance Notes does not result in changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior years.
 anagement has considered and is of the view that the adoption of the SB-FRSs, INT SB-FRSs and amendments to SB-FRSs
M
that were issued as at the date of authorisation of these financial statements but not effective until future periods will not have a
material impact on the financial statements of the Group and of WDA in the period of their initial adoption.
 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION – The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of WDA and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by WDA (its subsidiary). Control is achieved when WDA:
•

Has power over the investee;

•

Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

•

Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

 DA reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
W
of the three elements of control listed above.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when WDA obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when WDA loses control of
the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date WDA gains control until the date when WDA ceases to control the
subsidiary.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiary to bring its accounting policies into line with
the Group’s accounting policies.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
54

|

WDA Annual Report 2015/16

Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Notes To Financial Statements
31 March 2016
receipts or payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
Income and expenses are recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
Financial assets
All financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is
recognised by applying the effective interest method, except for short-term receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.
 or financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
F
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade and other
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the income or expenditure. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
income or expenditure.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through income or expense to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment loss not been recognised.
Derecognition of financial assets
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments
 n equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
A
Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of significant direct issue costs.
Pursuant to the Finance Circular Minute (“FCM”) No. 26/2008 on Capital Management Framework (“CMF”), equity injection from
the Government is recorded as share capital.
Financial liabilities
 rade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured amortised
T
cost, using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
 EASES – Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
L
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor
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 ental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another
R
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
The Group as lessee
 entals payable under operating leases are charged to income or expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
R
lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method on the following bases:
Furniture and fittings

- 8 years

Office equipment

- 5 years

Computer equipment

- 3 to 5 years

Leasehold land

- 30 years

Mechanical and electrical equipment

- 10 years

Building

- 30 years

Construction-in-progress included in property, plant and equipment is not depreciated as these assets are not available for use.
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These are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other assets,
commences when the assets are available for use.
 he estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of
T
each reporting period with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.
Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use are retained in the financial statements.
 n item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
A
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the income or expense in the year the asset
is derecognised.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS – Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation (where they
have finite useful lives) and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method on the following
bases:
Computer software

- 3 to 5 years

 ssets under development included in intangible assets comprise of software implementation that are not depreciated as these
A
assets are not available for use.
 he estimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation method of intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
T
period with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.
An item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the income or expense in the year the asset is
derecognised.
IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS – At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately as
an expense.
 here an impairment loss subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the
W
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately as income.
Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.
PROVISIONS – Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.
 he amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
T
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
GOVERNMENT GRANTS – WDA receives various types of grants to meet its operating and development expenditure.
 overnment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
G
to them and the grants will be received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position and transferred
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to income or expenditure on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Other government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are
intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in income or expenses in the period in which they become receivable.
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS – Trust and agency funds are set up to account for funds held in trust where WDA is not the owner
and beneficiary of the funds received from the Government and other organisations. The receipts and expenditure in respect of
agency funds are taken directly to the funds accounts and the net assets relating to the funds are shown as a separate line item
in the statement of financial position. Trust funds include Skills Development Fund (“SDF”), Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
(“LLEF”), SkillsFuture Jubilee Fund (“SFJF”) and National Productivity Fund (“NPF”).
Trust funds are accounted for on an accrual basis, except for the LLEF which is accounted for on a cash basis.
REVENUE RECOGNITION – Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount can be reliably measured.
Workers’ assessment fees, application fees and course fees
(i)

Workers’ assessment fees are recognised when the assessment tests are undertaken.

(ii)

 pplication fees are recognised when the application to be an approved training organisation or application for courses’
A
accreditation have been approved.

(iii)

Course fees are recognised upon attendance of the courses by the participants.

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.
 ETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS – Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an
R
expense when employees have rendered the services entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to state-managed
retirement benefit schemes, such as the Singapore Central Provident Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
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plans where the Group’s obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan.


 MPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT – Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
E
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.
CONTRIBUTION TO CONSOLIDATED FUND – Under Section 13(1)(e) and the First Schedule of the Singapore Income Tax Act,
Chapter 134, the income of WDA is exempted from income tax.
In lieu of income tax, WDA is required to make contribution to the Consolidated Fund in accordance with the Statutory Corporations
(Contributions to Consolidated Fund) Act, Chapter 319A. The provision is based on the guidelines specified by the Ministry of
Finance. It is computed based on the net surplus of WDA for each of the financial year at the prevailing corporate tax rate for the
Year of Assessment. Contribution to consolidated fund is provided for on an accrual basis.
INCOME TAX – Income tax represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax of the subsidiaries of WDA.
 he tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of
T
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are not taxable or tax deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted in countries where the subsidiaries operate by the end of the reporting period.
 eferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
D
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
 eferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
D
realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in income or expenditure, except when it relate to items credited
or debited outside income or expenditure (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case the tax is also
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recognised outside income or expenditure (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively).
 ASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
C
cash flows comprise cash balances and deposits placed with the Accountant-General’s Department (“AGD”) and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
 nder the Accountant-General Circular No.4/2009 dated 2 November 2009, WDA is required to participate in the Centralised
U
Liquidity Management Framework (“CLM”). Under the CLM, all bank accounts maintained with selected banks will be linked up
with AGD’s bank accounts such that excess available cash can be automatically aggregated for central management on a daily
basis. These balances are included in cash and cash equivalents as “Centralised Liquidity Management (“CLM”) deposits held
with Accountant-General’s Department (AGD)”.
 OREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS – The individual financial statements of each group entity are measured and presented
F
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). The consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position of WDA are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the
functional currency of WDA and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and WDA, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective entities in the Group are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in income
or expenditure for the period.
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3	CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
 he estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
T
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
	
Management is of the opinion that there are no critical judgements or significant estimates that would have a significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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4	
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS,
MANAGEMENT
(a)

FINANCIAL

RISKS

AND

CAPITAL

RISK

Categories of financial instruments
The following table sets out the financial instrument as at the end of the reporting period:
Group

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents)

103,046,386

89,405,104

95,852,819

84,066,252

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

59,504,216

46,998,469

57,496,559

45,719,120

Financial assets at amortised cost

(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
The Group is exposed to financial risk arising from its operations which include foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group has adopted risk management practices, which set out its general risk
management framework as discussed below.
 here has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and
T
measures the risk.

		(i)

Foreign exchange risk management
 he Group’s operations are not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as its transactions, monetary assets
T
and liabilities are predominantly denominated in Singapore dollars.
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis has not been presented as management do not expect any reasonable
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possible changes in foreign currency exchange rates to have a significant impact on the Group’s operations and
cash flows.
		(ii)

Interest rate risk management
 DA has cash balances placed with reputable banks and financial institutions and deposits held with AGD and
W
has limited exposure to interest rate risk as variable rate interest-bearing assets are mainly of a short-term nature
(Note 6).

		(iii)

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group.
 he Group’s credit risk is limited as the major classes of financial assets are cash and deposits with AGD and
T
trade and other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial assets is the
carrying amount of that class of financial instruments as presented on the statement of financial position.

(iv)

Liquidity risk management
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient funding from the Government to finance its operations.

(v)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their respective fair values.

(c)

Capital risk management policies and objectives
 he Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while fulfilling its objective as
T
a statutory board.
The capital structure of the Group consists of accumulated surplus, capital account and share capital. The overall strategy
of the Group remains unchanged from the previous financial year.
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5

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Some of the Group’s transactions and arrangements are with related parties and the effect of these on the basis determined
between the parties is reflected in these financial statements. These balances are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
The Group and WDA entered into the following significant transactions with its parent Ministry, Ministry of Manpower (“MOM”), and
other government bodies during the year:
Group
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

1,387,679

1,679,590

Grant disbursements

45,881,245

26,203,068

Professional services

6,058,038

3,256,542

Maintenance expenses

8,967,751

8,671,391

Agency fee paid to CPF Board

1,059,775

924,214

493,137

1,470,383

Receipt from related parties
Operating income
Payments to related parties

Cancellable operating lease expenses
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Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the financial year were as follows:
Group and WDA

Wages and salaries
Employer’s contribution to Central Provident Fund

6

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

10,293,711

8,103,022

600,271

371,370

10,893,982   

8,474,392

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

84,619,165

80,482,547

69,861,698

72,135,816

Centralised Liquidity
Management (“CLM”)
deposits held with AGD (i)
Cash at bank or on hand

2,169

5,962

2,169

5,962

84,621,334

80,488,509

69,863,867

72,141,778

With effect from financial year 2009/2010, Statutory Boards are to participate in the Centralised Liquidity Management by the AGD under AGD Circular 4/2009.
Deposits, which are interest- bearing, are centrally managed by AGD and are available to the statutory board upon request and earns interest at the average rate
of 1.26% (2014/2015 : 0.85%) per annum.

(i) 
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7

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

4,069,784

4,167,809

11,220,022

7,075,056

354,128

514,001

193,640

315,633

Trade and other receivables
Not past due and not impaired
Past due but not impaired:
< 3 months

316,553

397,870

157,637

302,401

3 months to 4 months

20,447

112,945

20,447

10,046

> 4 months

17,128

3,186

15,556

3,186

Impaired receivables

32,007

13,032

32,007

13,032

Less: Allowance for impairment
Amount due from LLEF
Amount due from SDF

(32,007)

(13,032)

(32,007)

(13,032)

4,423,912

4,681,810

11,413,662

7,390,689

-

2,610,331

-

2,610,331

12,229,871

-

12,229,871

-

16,653,783

7,292,141

23,643,533

10,001,020

 he credit period on rendering of services is 30 days (2014/2015 : 30 days). No interest is charged on the trade receivables and
T
no collateral is held by the Group over the trade receivables.
In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the receivable from
the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. Credit risk is limited due to management’s on-going evaluation of
the creditworthiness of the Group’s customers and that majority of the Group’s trade receivables are within their expected cash
collection cycle.
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Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
Group and WDA
2014/2015

$

$

Balance at beginning of the year

13,032

3,639

Charge to income or expenditure

32,007

13,032

(13,032)

(3,639)

32,007

13,032

Allowance utilised in the year
Balance at end of the year

8

2015/2016

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Group

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

Deposits

1,771,269

1,624,454

2,345,419

1,923,454

Prepayments

6,961,849

5,614,469

7,175,415

5,601,119

8,733,118

7,238,923

9,520,834

7,524,573

Current portion

7,217,224

4,192,785

7,825,289

4,083,935

Non-current portion

1,515,894

3,046,138

1,695,545

3,440,638

Total

8,733,118

7,238,923

9,520,834

7,524,573

Represented by:
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9

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group

Furniture and
fittings

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Leasehold
land

Mechanical
and electrical
equipment

Building

Constructionin-progress

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Cost:
At 1 April 2014

9,537,228

1,468,913

2,173,674

36,822,094

-   

184,132,856

2,560,404

236,695,169

Additions

10,720,086

679,004

6,626,128

-   

2,111,136

3,316,319

-   

23,452,673

Transfers

(424,785)

5,180

419,605

-   

-   

2,560,404

(2,560,404)

-   

Reclassified from intangible assets (Note 10)

-   

-   

2,107,457

-   

-   

-   

-   

2,107,457

Disposal/Write-off

(293,018)

(40,733)

(673,029)

-   

-   

-   

-   

(1,006,780)

At 31 March 2015

19,539,511

2,112,364

10,653,835

36,822,094

2,111,136

190,009,579

-   

261,248,519

3,585,441

659,116

14,496,370

-

187,054

3,023,614

-

21,951,595

Additions
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Disposal/Write-off

(79,367)

(5,639)

(44,488)

-

-

-

-

(129,494)

At 31 March 2016

23,045,585

2,765,841

25,105,717

36,822,094

2,298,190

193,033,193

-

283,070,620
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Furniture and
fittings

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Leasehold
land

Mechanical
and electrical
equipment

Building

Constructionin-progress

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

At 1 April 2014

6,930,040

1,059,396

1,629,919

2,763,407

-   

3,985,578

-   

16,368,340

Depreciation

1,429,261

239,066

1,625,065

1,327,936

66,594

6,271,345

-   

10,959,267

Group

Accumulated depreciation:

Reclassified from intangible assets (Note 10)

-   

-   

155,273

-   

-   

-   

-   

155,273

(198,253)

(13,863)

(257,406)

-   

-   

-   

-   

(469,522)

At 31 March 2015

8,161,048

1,284,599

3,152,851

4,091,343

66,594

10,256,923

-   

27,013,358

Depreciation

2,642,087

308,546

2,781,816

1,227,403

228,108

6,394,551

-

13,582,511

Disposal/Write-off

Disposal/Write-off

(74,659)

(5,639)

(43,280)

-

-

-

-

(123,578)

At 31 March 2016

10,728,476

1,587,506

5,891,387

5,318,746

294,702

16,651,474

-

40,472,291

At 31 March 2016

12,317,109

1,178,335

19,214,330

31,503,348

2,003,488

176,381,719

-

242,598,329

At 31 March 2015

11,378,463

827,765

7,500,984

32,730,751

2,044,542

179,752,656

-   

234,235,161

Carrying amount:
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WDA

Furniture and
fittings

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Leasehold
land

Mechanical
and electrical
equipment

Building

Constructionin-progress

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

Cost:
At 1 April 2014

9,537,228

1,464,113

2,173,674

36,822,094

-   

184,132,856

2,560,404

236,690,369

Additions

10,720,086

679,004

6,626,128

-   

2,111,136

3,316,319

-

23,452,673

Transfers

(424,785)

5,180

419,605

-   

2,560,404

(2,560,404)

-   

-   

-   

2,107,457

-   

-   

-   

2,107,457

Reclassified from intangible assets (Note 10)
Disposal/Write-off

(293,018)

(40,733)

(673,029)

-   

-   

-   

-   

(1,006,780)

At 31 March 2015

19,539,511

2,107,564

10,653,835

36,822,094

2,111,136

190,009,579

-   

261,243,719

3,585,441

659,116

14,493,390

-

159,054

3,023,614

-

21,920,615

Additions
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-   

Disposal/Write-off

(79,367)

(5,639)

(44,488)

-

-

-

-

(129,494)

At 31 March 2016

23,045,585

2,761,041

25,102,737

36,822,094

2,270,190

193,033,193

-

283,034,840
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Furniture and
fittings

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Leasehold
land

Mechanical
and electrical
equipment

Building

Constructionin-progress

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

At 1 April 2014

6,930,040

1,058,996

1,629,919

2,763,407

-   

3,985,578

-   

16,367,940

Depreciation

1,429,261

238,106

1,625,065

1,327,936

66,594

6,271,345

-   

10,958,307

WDA

Accumulated depreciation:

Reclassified from intangible assets (Note 10)

-   

-   

155,273

-   

-   

-   

-   

155,273

(198,253)

(13,863)

(257,406)

-   

-   

-   

-   

(469,522)

At 31 March 2015

8,161,048

1,283,239

3,152,851

4,091,343

66,594

10,256,923

-   

27,011,998

Depreciation

2,642,087

307,586

2,781,154

1,227,403

223,908

6,394,551

-

13,576,689

Disposal/Write-off

(74,659)

(5,639)

(43,280)

-

-

-

-

(123,578)

At 31 March 2016

10,728,476

1,585,186

5,890,725

5,318,746

290,502

16,651,474

-

40,465,109

At 31 March 2016

12,317,109

1,175,855

19,212,012

31,503,348

1,979,688

176,381,719

-

242,569,731

At 31 March 2015

11,378,463

824,325

7,500,984

32,730,751

2,044,542

179,752,656

-   

234,231,721

Disposal/Write-off

Carrying amount:
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10

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software

Assets under development

Total

$

$

$

Cost:
At 1 April 2014
Additions
Transfers
Reclassified to property, plant and equipment (Note 9)
Disposals
At 31 March 2015
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
At 31 March 2016

18,681,792
7,294,882
911,278
(1,717,169)
(131,864)
25,038,919
28,918,189
22,605,780
(170,764)
76,392,124

8,566,674
15,440,350
(911,278)
(390,288)
(8,906)
22,696,552
818,057
(22,605,780)
908,829

27,248,466
22,735,232
-   
(2,107,457)
(140,770)
47,735,471
29,736,246
(170,764)
77,300,953

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 April 2014
Amortisation
Reclassified to property, plant and equipment (Note 9)
Disposals
At 31 March 2015
Amortisation
Disposals
At 31 March 2016

11,435,289
3,140,687
(155,273)
(31,187)
14,389,516
6,843,543
(26,214)
21,206,845

-   
-   
-   
-

11,435,289
3,140,687
(155,273)
(31,187)
14,389,516
6,843,543
(26,214)
21,206,845

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2016

55,185,279

908,829

56,094,108

At 31 March 2015

10,649,403

22,696,552

33,345,955

Group and WDA
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11

GOVERNMENT GRANTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
Group

Operations
Operations
funded by SDF(v) funded by LLEF(v)
$
$

CES(i)
$

IAL(ii)
$

RF(iii)
$

WTS(iv)
$

2,462,888

1,669,632

3,090,035

-   

5,329,781

-   
2,462,888
-   
-   

18,702,968
20,372,600
(17,558,811)
72,416

66,344,439
69,434,474
(68,322,029)
-   

42,756,200
42,756,200
(40,819,671)
-   

-   
-   
2,462,888
-

-   
-   
2,886,205
(2,886,205)

(275,107)
-   
837,338
-

Transfer to income or expenditure
Internal fund transfer

2,462,888
-

-

Transfer to deferred capital grants
(Note 13)
Unutilised grant returned

-

-

At 1 April 2014
Grants received during the
financial year
Transfer to income or expenditure
Internal fund transfer
Transfer to deferred capital grants
(Note 13)
Unutilised grant returned
At 31 March 2015
Reclassification
Grants received during the
financial year

At 31 March 2016

2,462,888

-

Operating grant
$

Total
$

1,862,579

-   

14,414,915

80,349,069
85,678,850
(35,408,486)
14,554

27,592,066
29,454,645
(21,542,809)
(1,890)

61,521,400
61,521,400
(60,624,390)
(85,080)

297,266,142
311,681,057
(244,276,196)
-   

-   
-   
1,936,529
-

(38,088,188)
(2,500,000)
9,696,730
-

(6,085,807)
-   
1,824,139
2,886,205

(811,930)
-   
-   
-

(45,261,032)
(2,500,000)
19,643,829
-

34,173,259
35,010,597
(30,780,024)
-

45,263,470
47,199,999
(47,148,322)
-

66,256,580
75,953,310
(38,148,439)
155,040

41,691,838
46,402,182
(42,457,819)
72,193

133,269,500
133,269,500
(123,277,148)
(227,233)

320,654,647
340,298,476
(281,811,752)
-

(3,444,725)
(512,358)

-

(21,843,319)
-

(1,598,909)
-

(9,765,119)
-

(36,652,072)
(512,358)

273,490

51,677

16,116,592

2,417,647

-

21,322,294
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WDA

At 1 April 2014
Grants received during the
financial year

RF(iii)

WTS(iv)

Operating grant

Total

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

2,462,888

1,669,632

3,090,035

-   

-   

1,862,579

-   

9,085,134

-   

18,702,968

66,344,439

42,756,200

77,564,524

27,592,066

61,521,400

294,481,597

20,372,600

69,434,474

42,756,200

77,564,524

29,454,645

61,521,400

303,566,731

Transfer to income or expenditure

-   

(17,558,811)

(68,322,029)

(40,819,671)

(34,326,093)

(21,542,809)

(60,624,390)

(243,193,803)

Internal fund transfer
Transfer to deferred capital grants
(Note 13)

-   

72,416

-   

-   

14,554

(1,890)

(85,080)

-   

-   

-   

(275,107)

-   

(38,088,188)

(6,085,807)

(811,930)

(45,261,032)

2,462,888

2,886,205

837,338

1,936,529

5,164,797

1,824,139

-   

15,111,896

-

(2,886,205)

-

-

-

2,886,205

-

-

-

-

34,173,259

45,263,470

63,967,478

41,691,838

133,269,500

318,365,545

2,462,888

-

35,010,597

47,199,999

69,132,275

46,402,182

133,269,500

333,477,441

Transfer to income or expenditure

-

-

(30,780,024)

(47,148,322)

(35,939,975)

(42,457,819)

(123,277,148)

(279,603,288)

Internal fund transfer

-

-

-

-

155,040

72,193

(227,233)

-

Transfer to deferred capital grants
(Note 13)

-

-

(3,444,725)

-

(21,843,319)

(1,598,909)

(9,765,119)

(36,652,072)

Unutilised grant returned

-

-

(512,358)

-

-

-

-

(512,358)

2,462,888

-

273,490

51,677

11,504,021

2,417,647

-

16,709,723

Reclassification
Grants received during the financial
year

At 31 March 2016

|

IAL(ii)

2,462,888

At 31 March 2015
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Operations
funded by SDF(v) funded by LLEF(v)

CES(i)
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(i)

Centre for Employability Skills



In November 1998, the Bukit Merah Skills Development Centre (“BMSDC”) was established as part of the off-budget
measure to offer full-time training facilities for workers and to expand training resources for companies in Singapore. In
2007, the centre was repositioned into a Centre for Employability Skills (“CES”) which coordinates and delivers courses,
appraises and assesses workers’ and trainees’ skills and provides facilities for organisations to operate training and
administer Employability Skills System and Workforce Skills Qualification. The balance amount from the former BMSDC
was transferred by the Institute of Technical Education to WDA. The centre manager was Nanyang Polytechnic (“NYP”)
in FY2005 and FY2006. In FY2007, WDA took over the assessment function from NYP while appointing Employment and
Employability Institute (“E2I”) as managing agent of the premises for a period of 2 years from 1 April 2007 to 31 March
2009. WDA has since relinquished the Temporary Occupation Licence for the premises with effect from 1 April 2009 and
E2I has taken over the lease of the premises while the assessment function still remains with WDA.

(ii)

Institute for Adult Learning
Institute for Adult Learning (“IAL”) was set up as a Division of WDA in April 2008 as part of the Continuing Education and
Training (“CET”) Master Plan approved by the Cabinet in December 2007. It is set up as a “Centre for Adult Pedagogy” to
ensure high quality CET practices and research among adult educators. The set up and operation of IAL is fully funded by
the LLEF. With effect from FY2015, the IAL was reported as part of the “Operations funded by Skills Development Fund
and Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund”.

(iii)

Reinvestment Funds
 einvestment Funds (“RF”) are provided by Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) to supplement WDA’s operating grant and/or
R
project funds. There are various types of Reinvestment Funds allocated on an annual or multiple years’ basis.

(iv)

Workfare Training Support
 orkfare Training Support (“WTS”) is a scheme which started on 1 July 2010 introduced in the Government Budget
W
2010 to complement the Workfare Income Supplement (“WIS”). WTS aims to incentivise employers to send their lowwaged workers for training as well as to encourage low-waged workers to commit to sustained training efforts. While WIS
encourages older low-wage workers to work by supplementing their income and retirement savings, WTS encourages
them to upgrade their skills through training so that they can improve their employability, upgrade to better jobs and earn
more.
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(v)

Operations funded by Skills Development Fund and Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund



Starting FY2011, in areas permissible, WDA taps on the SDF and LLEF to meet the increasing demands and needs of
WDA’s workforce development efforts. These expenditures pertain to manpower and operating overheads related to the
delivery of specific CET programmes.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Details of WDA’s subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Principal activities

Country of incorporation
and place of business

Proportion of ownership interest
and voting power held
2015/2016

2014/2015

%

%

Held by WDA
Learning Gateway Ltd (“LG”) (i)

Management of the CET East and West campuses

Singapore

100

100

Management of the CET East campus’ operations

Singapore

100

100

Held by Learning Gateway Ltd
Lifelong Learning Institute Pte Ltd (“LLI”) (ii)

(i)

LG was incorporated on 17 May 2013 as a company limited by guarantee. WDA is the sole member of the company.

(ii)

LLI is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LG, incorporated on 12 August 2013.

 DA has provided a commitment for financial support of $981,318 (2014/2015 : $991,445) to a subsidiary for a period of twelve
W
months from the end of the reporting period so as to enable the subsidiary to continue to operate as a going concern and meet its
contractual obligations when they fall due.
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13

DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS
Group and WDA

At beginning of the year

14

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

264,259,316

232,983,803

Amounts transferred from governments grants (Note 11)

36,652,072

45,261,032

Amounts transferred from National Productivity Fund (Note 23)

14,164,582

-

Amortisation of deferred capital grants

315,075,970
(19,696,496)

278,244,835
(13,985,519)

At end of the year

295,379,474

264,259,316

OTHER PAYABLES
Group

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

8,287,702

6,595,427

8,341,277

6,595,427

Other payables
- Related parties (Note 5)
- Third parties

13,810,534

9,083,670

12,014,532

7,905,417

Accruals

32,389,467

26,509,292

32,124,237

26,408,196

Advance receipts

1,099,298

396,186

390,952

260,836

55,587,001

42,584,575

52,870,998   

41,169,876
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15

PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COSTS
Group and WDA

At beginning of the year
Provision made during the year

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

4,810,080

4,805,303

840,207

848,972

Overprovision (Note 27)

(633,774)

(844,195)

At end of the year

5,016,513

4,810,080

Represented by:
Current portion

1,881,095

-   

Non-current portion

3,135,418

4,810,080

5,016,513

4,810,080

 rovision for reinstatement costs is the estimated costs to restore any or all parts of the Group’s and WDA’s leased premises and
P
land to their state and condition as at the commencement of the lease terms. Management’s estimate for reinstatement costs of
land include expenditures to carry out demolition works, distress prestressed tendon, imported earth backfilling and turfing. The
provision is expected to be utilised upon return of the Group’s and WDA’s leased premises and land.
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16

CONTRIBUTION TO CONSOLIDATED FUND
The total contribution for the year can be reconciled to the net deficit as follows:
WDA

Deficit of WDA before contribution to consolidated fund
Contribution at 17%

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

(178,514)

(3,223,810)

-

-

At the end of the financial year, WDA has accumulated deficits carried forward as follows:
WDA

Balance at beginning of the year
Amount arising in current year

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

9,116,327

5,892,517

178,514

3,223,810

Balance at end of the year

9,294,841

9,116,327

Benefits on above not recognised at 17%

1,580,123

1,549,776

Benefits in relation to the accumulated deficits were not recognised in prior years due to the unpredictability of future
surplus streams.
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17

INCOME TAX
Group
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Current year

340

-

Underprovision in prior years

255

-

595

-

Income tax:

Domestic income tax is calculated at 17% (2014/2015 : 17%) of the estimated assessable income for the period.
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting surplus (deficit) as follows:

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Surplus (Deficit) before contribution to consolidated fund and taxation

92,756

(3,296,640)

Income tax expense (credit) at statutory tax rate

15,769

(560,429)

Deficit of WDA not subjected to tax

74,640

526,799

Non-allowable items

        (46,535)

16,847

Tax exempt income

          (1,482)

(954)

Underprovision of income tax in prior years
Effects of deferred tax asset not recognised
Utilisation of deferred tax benefits
Others
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17,951

(39,536)

-

          (2,516)

(214)
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-
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18

CAPITAL ACCOUNT
Capital account represents the Government’s capital contribution for the establishment of WDA.

19

SHARE CAPITAL
2015/2016
WDA
Issued and fully paid up:
At beginning and end of year

2014/2015

Number of shares

1,000

1,000

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

1,000  

1,000

Injection of capital is part of the Capital Management Framework for Statutory Boards under Finance Circular Minute M26/2008.  
The shares have been fully paid and are held by the Minister for Finance, a body corporate incorporated by the Minister for
Finance (Incorporation) Act (Chapter 183). The holder of these shares, which has no par value, is entitled to receive dividends.
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20

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - RESTRICTED FUNDS
Group
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CES
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

IAL

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

RF

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

WTS

2015
$’000

Operations funded
by SDF
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

Operations funded
by LLEF
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

Total

2015
$’000

Income
Operating income
Other income and (losses) gains

-

-   
-   

-

4,267
186

39

-   
(5)

-

-   
-   

1,545
12,466

856
9,442

3,374
362

372
19

4,919
12,867

5,495
9,642

Less: Expenditure
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation expense
Staff costs
Grant disbursements
Rental expenses on operating leases
Professional services
Maintenance expenses
Suppliers and material
Public relations
Travel expenses
Agency fee paid to CPF Board
GST expenses
Temporary staff cost
Course-related trainers’ fees
Cancellable operating lease
Others

-

-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   

-

(137)
(357)
(7,672)
-   
(779)
(4,134)
(664)
(458)
(1,003)
(135)
-   
(303)
(874)
(5,526)
-   
(389)

(101)
(534)
(7,974)
(18,111)
(668)
(1,812)
(973)
(183)
(80)
(2)
(264)
(6)
(14)

(41)
-   
(300)
(67,981)
-   
(29)
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
(2)
-   
-   
-   
(1)

(34)
(47,148)
-

(39)
-   
-   
(40,819)
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   

(3,507)
(11,373)
(25,171)
(169)
(16)
(10,855)
(9,617)
(1,233)
(227)
(189)
(1,060)
(1,766)
(1,102)
(460)
(1,091)
(458)

(802)
(9,642)
(28,314)
(933)
(15)
(5,807)
(6,414)
(1,993)
(209)
(157)
(924)
(719)
(932)
-   
(867)
(391)

(1,799)
(758)
(23,795)
(2,472)
(5,084)
(2,584)
(688)
(1,047)
(214)
(1,087)
(1,389)
(5,011)
(974)
(699)

(723)
(216)
(4,492)
187
(2,154)
(5,681)
(1,719)
(418)
(4,902)
(20)
-   
(1,039)
(518)
-   
(394)
(152)

(5,441)
(12,665)
(56,940)
(65,428)
(3,156)
(17,751)
(13,174)
(2,104)
(1,354)
(405)
(1,060)
(3,117)
(2,491)
(5,471)
(2,071)
(1,171)

(1,742)
(10,215)
(40,778)
(109,546)
(2,948)
(15,651)
(8,797)
(2,869)
(6,114)
(312)
(924)
(2,063)
(2,324)
(5,526)
(1,261)
(933)

WDA Annual Report 2015/16

Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Notes To Financial Statements
31 March 2016
Group

CES
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

IAL

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

RF

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

WTS

2015
$’000

Operations funded
by SDF
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

Operations funded
by LLEF
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

Total

2015
$’000

Deficit before government grant

-

-   

-

(17,978)

(30,683)

(68,359)

(47,182)

(40,858)

(54,283)

(47,821)

(43,865)

(21,850)

(176,013)

(196,866)

Grants from government
Deferred capital grants amortised

-

-   
-   
-   

-

17,485
493
17,978

30,780
412
31,192

68,322
41
68,363

47,148
34
47,182

40,820
39
40,859

37,993
14,845
52,838

35,395
10,801
46,196

42,386
2,426
44,812

21,545
858
22,403

158,307
17,717
176,024

183,567
12,232
195,799

Surplus (Deficit) before contribution

-

-   

-

-   

509

4

-

1

(1,445)

(1,625)

947

553

11

(1,067)

Contribution to consolidated fund
Income tax expense

-

-   
-   

-

-   
-   

-

-   
-   

-

-   
-   

(1)

-   
-   

-

-   
-   

(1)

-   
-   

Net surplus (deficit) for the year

-

-   

-

-   

509

4

-

1

(1,446)

(1,625)

947

553

10

(1,067)

Accumulated surplus (deficit) at the
beginning of the year

1,138

1,138

-   

-   

29

25

1

-   

(2,544)

(919)

701

148

(675)

392

Accumulated surplus (deficit) at the
end of the year

1,138

1,138

-

-   

538

29

1

1

(3,990)

(2,544)

1,648

701

(665)

(675)
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CES
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

IAL

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

RF

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

WTS

2015
$’000

Operations funded
by SDF
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

Operations funded
by LLEF
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

Total

2015
$’000

Income
Operating income
Other income and (losses) gains

-   
-   

-   
-   

-   
-   

4,267
186

39

-   
(5)

-

-   
-   

1,545
11,075

856
7,433

3,374
362

372
19

4,919
11,476

5,495
7,633

Less: Expenditure
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation expense
Staff costs
Grant disbursements
Rental expenses on operating leases
Professional services
Maintenance expenses
Suppliers and material
Public relations
Travel expenses
Agency fee paid to CPF Board
GST expenses
Temporary staff cost
Course-related trainers’ fees
Cancellable operating lease
Others

-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   

-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   

-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   

(137)
(357)
(7,672)
-   
(779)
(4,134)
(664)
(458)
(1,003)
(135)
-   
(303)
(874)
(5,526)
-   
(389)

(101)
(534)
(7,974)
(18,319)
(872)
(1,812)
(1,070)
(183)
(80)
(2)
(264)
(6)
(14)

(41)
-   
(300)
(67,985)
-   
(29)
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
(2)
-   
-   
-   
(1)

(34)
(47,148)
-

(39)
-   
-   
(40,820)
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   

(3,507)
(11,367)
(24,005)
(49)
(319)
(10,713)
(7,007)
(416)
(48)
(185)
(1,060)
(1,766)
(834)
(460)
(1,092)
(421)

(802)
(9,641)
(27,307)
-   
(230)
(5,704)
(4,806)
(1,013)
(76)
(155)
(924)
(719)
(783)
-   
(867)
(375)

(1,799)
(758)
(23,795)
(3,125)
(5,084)
(2,878)
(688)
(1,047)
(214)
(1,087)
(1,389)
(5,011)
(974)
(699)

(723)
(216)
(4,492)
187
(2,529)
(5,681)
(1,881)
(418)
(4,916)
(20)
-   
(1,038)
(518)
-   
(394)
(155)

(5,441)
(12,659)
(55,774)
(65,516)
(4,316)
(17,609)
(10,955)
(1,287)
(1,175)
(401)
(1,060)
(3,117)
(2,223)
(5,471)
(2,072)
(1,134)

(1,742)
(10,214)
(39,771)
(108,618)
(3,538)
(15,548)
(7,351)
(1,889)
(5,995)
(310)
(924)
(2,062)
(2,175)
(5,526)
(1,261)
(920)
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CES
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

IAL

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

RF

2015
$’000

2016
$’000

WTS

2015
$’000

Operations funded
by SDF
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

Operations funded
by LLEF
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

Total

2015
$’000

Deficit before government grant

-   

-   

-

(17,978)

(31,192)

(68,363)

(47,182)

(40,859)

(50,629)

(45,113)

(44,812)

(22,403)

(173,815)

(194,716)

Grants from government
Deferred capital grants amortised

-   
-   

-   
-   
-   

-

17,485
493
17,978

30,780
412
31,192

68,322
41
68,363

47,148
34
47,182

40,820
39
40,859

35,784
14,845
50,629

34,312
10,801
45,113

42,386
2,426
44,812

21,545
858
22,403

156,098
17,717
173,815

182,484
12,232
194,716

Surplus before contribution

-   

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

Contribution to consolidated fund

-   

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

Net surplus for the year

-   

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

-

-   

Accumulated surplus (deficit) at the
beginning of the year

1,138

1,138

-   

-   

25

25

-   

-   

(31)

(31)

-   

-   

1,132

1,132

Accumulated surplus (deficit) at the
end of the year

1,138

1,138

-   

-   

25

25

-   

-   

(31)

(31)

-   

-   

1,132

1,132
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21

NET ASSETS OF SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
 he Skills Development Fund (“SDF”) was established in the Republic of Singapore on 1 October 1979 as a Government fund
T
under the Skills Development Levy Act (Cap. 306). With effect from 1 September 2003, the administration of the SDF was
transferred from the Ministry of Manpower (“MOM”) to WDA.
The SDF is established for the following purposes:
(i)

the promotion, development and upgrading of skills and expertise of persons preparing to join the workforce, persons in
the workforce and persons rejoining the workforce;

(ii)

the retraining of retrenched persons; and

(iii)

the provision of financial assistance by grants, loans or otherwise for the above-mentioned purposes.
The following financial information represents SDF:
Group and WDA
2015/2016
2014/2015
$
$

Income
Operating income
Other income
Fair value (losses) gains

Expenditure
Net disbursements
Allowance for impairment loss on receivables
Others

Surplus for the year
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year
88
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250,291,474
12,104,581
(2,124,875)
260,271,180

238,233,204
8,605,788
7,546,297
254,385,289

(185,192,299)
(13,814)
(5)
(185,206,118)

(189,386,347)
(24,193)
(34,830)
(189,445,370)

75,065,062
341,302,974
416,368,036

64,939,919
276,363,055
341,302,974

Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Notes To Financial Statements
31 March 2016
Group and WDA
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Represented by:
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

1,033,816,138

748,062,023

Levy and other receivables

15,041,075

10,231,706

Grants disbursed in advance

11,504,020

5,164,797

1,605,027

756,438

Derivative financial instruments
Financial assets, held-to-maturity

56,216,891

93,354,017

1,118,183,151

857,568,981

Non-current assets
Financial assets, held-to-maturity

86,302,176

56,851,506

102,915,658

304,480,870

189,217,834

361,332,376

(19,894,253)

(6,459,687)

Capital account

(871,138,696)

(871,138,696)

Net assets

1,287,506,732

1,212,441,670

416,368,036

341,302,974

Financial assets, fair value through profit or loss

Current liabilities
Payables
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22

NET ASSETS OF LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND
 he Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund (“LLEF”) is set up by the Singapore Government under the Lifelong Learning Endowment
T
Fund Act, Cap.162A for the acquisition of skills and expertise by persons and the development and upgrading of skills and
expertise of persons to enhance their employability; and the promotion of the acquisition, development and upgrading of skills and
expertise to enhance the employability of persons.
 DA has been appointed by the MOM as the administrator of the LLEF to receive and deploy the grant for programmes that are
W
congruent with the objectives of the LLEF.
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 he financial statements of the LLEF, as presented below, are prepared by MOM on a cash basis and audited by another
T
audit firm:

Receipts
Refund of unused grant from programme manager
Interest income
Expenditure
Grants disbursed
Administrative expenses
Grants received
Surplus (Deficit) for the year
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year

2015/2016
$

2014/2015
$

1,994,853
306,746
2,301,599

698,340
209,004
907,344

(159,957,446)
(159,957,446)

(151,307,271)
(63)
(151,307,334)

161,807,282

144,523,710

4,151,435
2,915,398
7,066,833

(5,876,280)
8,791,678
2,915,398

112,675
7,025,903
7,138,578

5,512,578
85,496
5,598,074

(71,745)

(2,682,676)

7,066,833

2,915,398

Represented by:
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Current liability
Payables
Net assets
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23

NET ASSETS OF NATIONAL PRODUCTIVITY FUND
WDA administers the National Productivity Fund (“NPF”) on behalf of Productivity Fund Administration Board.
The following financial information represents NPF:

Receipts
Government grants received
Interest income
Expenditure
Grant disbursements
Staff costs
Others
Purchase of plant and equipment (Note 13)

Deficit for the year
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Accumulated deficit at the end of the year

2015/2016
$
20,550,000
13,757
20,563,757
(11,432,585)
(766,499)
(150,142)
(14,164,582)
(26,513,808)
(5,950,051)
(5,950,051)

Represented by:
Current assets
Cash and bank balances
Trade and other receivables
Current liabilities
Other payables
Accruals
Net liabilities
92
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1,661,936
219,144
1,881,080
(5,040,625)
(2,790,506)
(7,831,131)
(5,950,051)
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24

NET ASSETS OF SKILLSFUTURE JUBILEE FUND
 he SkillsFuture Jubilee Fund (“SFJF”) was established in the Republic of Singapore as part of the Skills Development Fund
T
(“SDF”) established under section 5 of the Skills Development Levy Act (Chapter 306). SFJF was approved by the Cabinet
on 11 February 2015. The Singapore Workforce Development Agency is the appointed administrator of SFJF. The SFJF was
registered as a charity under the Charities Act, Cap. 37 on 7 April 2015 and has been accorded the status of an Institution of
a Public Character (IPC) for the period from 10 April 2015 to 9 April 2017.
The financial statements of SFJF, as presented below, are prepared on an accruals basis and audited by another audit firm:
2015/2016
$
Income
Donation income

10,000,000

Government grants received

10,000,000

Interest income

84,916
20,084,916

Surplus for the year
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year

20,084,916
20,084,916

Represented by:
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

20,013,865
71,051

Interest receivables

20,084,916

Net assets

20,084,916
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25

OPERATING INCOME
Group and WDA

Workers’ assessment fees
Application fees
Course fees

26

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

1,585,029

1,983,498

600,630

730,841

4,087,668

4,012,695

6,273,327

6,727,034

OTHER INCOME
Group

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

Interest income from:
- Short-term bank deposits
- CLM deposits held with AGD
Rental and service income
Others
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36

42

36

42

666,485

275,873

666,485

275,873

11,747,651

8,590,977

10,188,213

6,411,148

90,378

73,698

306,111

244,496

12,504,550

8,940,590

11,160,845

6,931,559

Singapore Workforce Development Agency and Its Subsidiaries
Notes To Financial Statements
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27

OTHER GAINS (LOSSES)
Group and WDA

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Reversal of overprovision for reinstatement costs (Note 15)
Currency translation gain

28

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

(909)

(73,022)

633,774

844,195

7,435

(7,396)

640,300

763,777

STAFF COSTS
Group

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

73,064,818

67,086,112

71,571,844

66,231,096

Contributions to defined contribution plans

9,295,245

10,635,425

9,069,524

10,536,407

Staff training and benefits

2,099,619

2,023,242

2,062,204

1,971,992

89,505

83,365

87,636

82,531

84,549,187

79,828,144

82,791,208

78,822,026

Wages and salaries

Skills Development Levy
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As lessee
 he Group and WDA leases office premises and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements. The leases
T
typically run for 1 to 5 years with an option to renew the lease thereafter and rentals are fixed for an average of 3 years.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the end of the reporting
period but not recognised as liabilities as at 31 March 2016 are as follows:
Group

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

WDA

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

7,864,033

7,024,782

9,812,750

8,944,768

12,555,870

19,006,975

13,297,709

20,235,675

20,419,903

26,031,757

23,110,459

29,180,443

As lessor
 he future aggregate minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the end of the reporting
T
period but not recognised as at 31 March 2016 are as follows:
Group
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Within one year

9,803,334

10,786,187

In the second to fifth year inclusive

8,936,138

13,902,183

After five years
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9,848,400

11,206,800

28,587,872

35,895,170
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30

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
 apital expenditure contracted for at the end of each reporting period but not recognised in the financial statements are
C
as follows:
Group and WDA
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

3,450

6,174,102

67,998,754

70,152,725

68,002,204

76,326,827

Commitments for the acquisition of:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

31

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In January 2016, the Singapore Government announced the intention to reorganise the functions of WDA for effective
implementation of two key priorities: the national SkillsFuture initiative and the need to ensure competitiveness and quality jobs for
Singaporeans over the long term. A new statutory board, tentatively named as SkillsFuture Singapore (“SSG”), under the Ministry
of Education (“MOE”) will be formed to drive and coordinate the implementation of SkillsFuture initiative. SSG will take over some
of the functions currently performed by WDA and absorb the Council for Private Education (“CPE”), an existing statutory board
under MOE.
WDA will be reconstituted into a new statutory board, tentatively named as Workforce Singapore (“WSG”), focused on jobs and
ensuring enterprises can become manpower-lean while remaining competitive. WSG will remain under the purview of MOM. The
reorganisation will require changes to existing laws and is subject to approvals following the Parliamentary legislative processes.
WDA and CPE will continue to perform their statutory functions until the new statutory boards have been established.
 ubject to the completion of the necessary legislative processes, the new statutory boards are expected to be established by the
S
end of 2016.
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Company, are subject to changes that may arise from
the resolution of outstanding audit matters which are
set out in the attached appendices and comments and
adjustments from our engagement quality assurance
review. The draft audit report included in the attached
financial statements should not be provided to any
other party or used for any purpose without our prior
written permission.
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#10-09 AZ@Paya Lebar
Singapore 409015
Telephone
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Professional No.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Statement By Singapore Workforce Development Agency
For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016
In our opinion,
(a)

the accompanying financial statements of SkillsFuture Jubilee Fund (“the Fund”), set out on pages 105 to 122 are properly drawn
up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Workforce Agency Act, Cap. 305D, Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306,
Singapore Charities Act, Cap. 37, (the “Acts”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”) so as to present
fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Fund as at 31 March 2016, and of the results, changes in fund and cash
flows of the Fund for the financial period ended on that date;

(b)

the receipts, expenditure and investment of moneys of the Fund and the acquisition and disposal of assets by the Fund during
the financial period have been in accordance with the provisions of the  Singapore Workforce Agency Act, Cap. 305D and Skills
Development Levy Act, Cap. 306;

(c)

the use of donation moneys is in accordance with the objectives of the Fund as required under regulation 11 of the Charities
(Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations;

(d)

the Fund has complied with the requirements of regulation 15 (Fund-raising expenses) of the Charities (Institutions of a Public
Character) Regulations; and

(e)

proper accounting and other records have been kept in accordance with the provisions of the Acts.

On behalf of the Singapore Workforce Development Agency, which administers the Fund

Tan Pheng Hock
Chairman

Ng Cher Pong
Chief Executive

Singapore
Date: 21 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of The Board Of
Singapore Workforce Development Agency
For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SkillsFuture Jubilee Fund (“the Fund”) set out on pages 105 to 122, which
comprise the statement of financial position of the Fund as at 31 March 2016, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in fund and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. The Fund is administered by the Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The management of WDA is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
provisions of the Singapore Workforce Agency Act, Cap. 305D, Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306, Singapore Charities Act, Cap. 37,
(the “Acts”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”), and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal controls relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of The Board Of
Singapore Workforce Development Agency
For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of the Fund are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Acts and Statutory Board
Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund as at 31 March 2016, and the results,
changes in fund and cash flows of the Fund for the financial period ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Management’s Responsibility for Compliance with Legal and Regulatory Requirements
The management of WDA is responsible for ensuring that the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of
assets and the accounting and other records to be kept, are in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Workforce Agency Act, Cap.
305D, Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306 and Singapore Charities Act, Cap. 37 (the “Acts”). This responsibility includes implementing
accounting and internal controls as management determines are necessary to enable compliance with the provisions of the Acts.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s compliance based on our audit of the financial statements. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. We planned and performed the compliance audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of assets and the accounting and
other records to be kept by the Fund, are in accordance with the provisions of the Acts.
Our compliance audit includes obtaining an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the receipts, expenditure, investment of
moneys, the acquisition and disposal of assets and the maintenance of accounting and other records; and assessing the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements from non-compliance, if any, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal controls. Because of the inherent limitations in any accounting and internal control systems, non-compliances may
nevertheless occur and not be detected.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
management’s compliance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report To The Members Of The Board Of
Singapore Workforce Development Agency
For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

Opinion
Singapore Workforce Agency Act, Cap. 305D and Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306 (the “Acts”)
In our opinion:
(a)

the receipts, expenditure and investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets by the Fund during the period
ended 31 March 2016 are, in all material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the Acts; and

(b)

proper accounting and other records have been kept in accordance with the provisions of the Acts.

Singapore Charities Act, Cap. 37 (the “Act”)
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Fund have been properly kept in accordance with
the provisions of the Act.
During the course of audit, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that during the financial period:
(a)

the use of donation moneys was not in accordance with the objectives of the Fund as required under regulation 11 of the Charities
(Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

(b)

the Fund has not complied with the requirements of regulation 15 (Fund-raising expenses) of the Charities (Institutions of a Public
Character) Regulations.

Assurance Partners LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore
Date: 21 June 2016
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Statement Of Comprehensive Income

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

Note

11 Feb 2015
to
31 Mar 2016
S$

Income
Donations received

(4)

10,000,000

Grant from the Government

(5)

10,000,000

Interest income

84,916
20,084,916

Less: Expenditure
Surplus for the period, representing total comprehensive income for the period

20,084,916

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these accounts.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2016

Note
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable

(6)
(7)

2016
S$

20,013,865
71,051
20,084,916

FUND
Accumulated fund
The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these accounts.
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(8)

20,084,916

Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Statement Of Changes In Fund

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016
Accumulated
fund
2016
Beginning of financial period

S$

-

Total comprehensive income for the period

20,084,916

End of financial period

20,084,916

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these accounts.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Statement Of Cash Flows

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus for the period

20,084,916

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Net cash generated from operating activities

(84,916)
20,000,000

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Net cash generated from investing activities

13,865
13,865

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period
The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these accounts.
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11 Feb 2015
to
31 Mar 2016
S$
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(6)

20,013,865
20,013,865

Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements:

1

General information
 he SkillsFuture Jubilee Fund (“the Fund”) was established in the Republic of Singapore as part of the Skills Development Fund
T
(“SDF”) established under section 5 of the Skills Development Levy Act (Chapter 306) (“SDL Act”). The Fund was approved by the
Cabinet on 11 February 2015. The Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”), the appointed administrator of the Fund,
was established in the Republic of Singapore under the Singapore Workforce Development Agency Act, Cap. 305D.
 s the Fund resides within SDF, in accordance with the objects of the Skills Development Levy Act, Cap 306, the objects for which
A
moneys of the Fund may be applied are as follows:
(a)

the promotion, development and upgrading of skills and expertise of persons preparing to join the Singapore workforce,
persons in the Singapore workforce and persons rejoining the Singapore workforce;

(b)

the retraining of retrenched persons; and

(c)

the provision of financial assistance by grants, loans or otherwise for the purposes of the above-mentioned objects.

 he intent for the Fund is to use the moneys to administer SkillsFuture Fellowships and SkillsFuture Employer Awards. These are
T
awards given to:
(i)

r ecognise and develop Singaporeans who embody characteristics aligned with the SkillsFuture objectives and support
them in developing skills mastery in their respective fields of work; and

(ii)

r ecognise employers who made significant effort to invest in employee training and supported the SkillsFuture effort to
develop structured skills-based career pathways for their employees.

 he Fund is registered as a charity under the Charities Act, Cap. 37 on 7 April 2015 and has been accorded the status of an
T
Institution of a Public Character (IPC) for the period from 10 April 2015 to 9 April 2017.
The Fund’s registered office and principal place of operations is at No. 1 Marina Boulevard #16-01, One Marina Boulevard,
Singapore 018989.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

2

Significant accounting policies
(a)

Basis of preparation

		Statement of compliance
 he financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Workforce Agency Act,
T
Cap. 305D, Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306, Singapore Charities Act, Cap. 37, (the “Acts”) and Statutory Board
Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”).
		Basis of measurement
 he financial statements have been prepared in accordance with SB-FRS. The financial statements have been prepared
T
under the historical cost convention and are prepared in Singapore dollars.
 he preparation of financial statements in conformity with SB-FRS requires management to exercise its judgement in
T
the process of applying the Fund’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain accounting estimates and
assumptions. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b)

SB-FRS and Interpretation of SB-FRS (INT SB-FRS) issued but not effective
The Fund has not applied the following SB-FRS that have been issued but not yet effective:

Effective date
(annual periods beginning on or after)
SB-FRS 1

:

Disclosure Initiative

1 January 2016

SB-FRS 114

:

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

1 January 2016

SB-FRS 109  

:

Financial Instruments

1 January 2018

Consequential amendments were also made to various standards as a result of the revised standards.  
 he Fund expects that the adoption of the above SB-FRS and INT SB-FRS in future periods, if applicable, will not have
T
a material impact on the financial statements of the Fund in the period of their initial adoption.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Revenue recognition

		(i)

Donations received
Donations are recognised in the period of receipt in the statement of comprehensive income as income.

		(ii)

Interest income
Interest is recognised on a time-apportioned basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

(d)

Tax expense
 he Fund is an approved charity organisation under the Charities Act, Chapter 37. No provision for taxation has been
T
made in the financial statements as the Fund is a registered charity with income tax exemption.

(e)

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to
match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants
relating to income are shown separately as other income.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Fund’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are
independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement unless it reverses
a previous revaluation, credited to funds, in which case it is charged to funds. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rate basis.
 he recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
T
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
cash-generating unit.
In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer in exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g)

Financial assets
(i)

Classification
 he Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
T
receivables, held-to-maturity, and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the nature of the asset and
the purpose for which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

			Loans and receivables
 oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
L
quoted in an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months
after the statement of financial position date which are presented as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are presented as “cash and cash equivalents” and “receivables” on the statement of financial position.  
(ii)

Recognition and derecognition
 egular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on which the Fund
R
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. On disposal of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sale proceeds is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount in the fair value reserve relating to that asset is
transferred to profit or loss.

114

|

WDA Annual Report 2015/16

Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)		
(g)

Financial assets (continued)
(iii)

Initial measurement
 inancial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets at fair
F
value through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value. Transaction costs for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately as expenses.

(iv)

Subsequent measurement
 inancial assets, both available-for-sale and at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
F
value. Loans and receivables and financial assets, held-to-maturity are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Changes in the fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss including the effects of currency translation, interest and dividends, are recognised in profit or loss when the
changes arise. Interest and dividend income on financial assets, available-for-sale are recognised separately
in income. Changes in the fair values of available-for-sale debt securities (i.e. monetary items) denominated
in foreign currencies are analysed into currency translation differences on the amortised cost of the securities
and other changes; the currency translation differences are recognised in profit or loss and the other changes
are recognised in the fair value reserve. Changes in fair values of available-for-sale equity securities (i.e. nonmonetary items) are recognised in the fair value reserve, together with the related currency translation differences.

		(v)

Impairment
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect
of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its current fair value.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h)

Cash and cash equivalents
 ash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits placed with the Accountant-General’s Department
C
(“AGD”) and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Under the Accountant-General Circular No. 4/2009 dated 2 November 2009, the Fund is required to participate in the
Centralised Liquidity Management Framework (“CLM”). Under the CLM, all bank accounts maintained with selected
banks will be linked up with AGD’s bank accounts such that excess available cash can be automatically aggregated for
central management on a daily basis. The Fund will continue to own/act as trustees for their funds and operate its bank
accounts, including giving instructions for payment and revenue collection. These balances are included in cash and
cash equivalents as “Centralised Liquidity Management (“CLM”) deposits held with AGD”.

(i)

Fair value estimation of financial assets
The fair values of current financial assets carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts.

j)

Functional and presentation currency
(i)

Functional and presentation currency



Items included in the financial statements of the Fund are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in
Singapore Dollars, which is the Fund’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii)

Transactions and balances
Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Currency translation
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates at the statement of financial position date
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k)

Accumulated fund
The accumulated fund is available for use at the discretion of the WDA in furtherance of the Fund’s objectives. Income
and expenditure are generally accounted for under the accumulated fund in the statement of comprehensive income.

3

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
 he preparation of the financial statements in conformity with SB-FRS requires management to make judgements, estimates
T
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
 stimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
E
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
 anagement is of the opinion that there are no critical judgements or significant estimates that would have a significant effect on
M
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

4

Donations
11 Feb 2015
to
31 Mar 2016
S$
Tax deductible

8,000,000

Non-tax deductible

2,000,000
10,000,000
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

5

Grant from the Government
11 Feb 2015
to
31 Mar 2016
S$
Matching grant received from Ministry of Manpower / Ministry of Finance

6

10,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents
2016
S$
Centralised Liquidity Management deposits held with AGD(i)

7

20,013,865

Interest receivable
2016

S$

Accrued interest - Centralised Liquidity Management
deposits held with AGD

71,051

Deposits, which are interest-bearing, are centrally managed by AGD and are available to the statutory board upon
request and earns interest at the average rate of 1.26% per annum.

(i) 
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

8

Accumulated fund
 he Fund comprises donations received from various entities and dollar-for-dollar matching grant from the Government. As at the
T
reporting date, the Fund received four donations amounting to S$10 million and matching grant of S$10 million from the Ministry
of Manpower / Ministry of Finance.

9

Operating lease commitments
At the statement of financial position date, the Fund has no operating lease commitments.

10

Financial risk management
The Fund is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks are
credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Fund’s management reviews and agrees on policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below:
(a)

Credit risk
 redit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
C
incur a financial loss. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the statement of financial position. The Fund mainly deals with counterparties that have high credit quality.
 he Fund also places its bank balances with a credit worthy financial institution. There are no other classes of financial
T
assets that are past due and/or impaired.

(b)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises on interest-bearing financial instruments recognised in the balance sheet. It is the risk that changes
in interest rates will affect the Fund’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Fund’s exposure
to interest rate risk for changes in interest rates mainly arise from its interest-earning bank deposits. The management
monitors movements in interest rates to ensure deposits are placed with financial institutions offering optimal rates
of return.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

10

Financial risk management (continued)
Within 1 year

1 to 5 years

Total

S$

S$

S$

20,013,865

-

20,013,865

At 31 March 2016
Centralised Liquidity Management deposits held with AGD

		Sensitivity analysis
A change of 25 basis points in interest rate at the reporting date would increase / (decrease) surplus and accumulated
surplus by the amounts as shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Floating rate instruments
- 31 March 2016

25 basis points
increase

25 basis points
decrease

S$

S$

50,000

(50,000)

The interest rates of financial assets of the Fund are disclosed in Note 6 of the financial statements.
(c)

Currency risk
 urrency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
C
rates. Currency risk arises when recognised asset and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.
 s at the statement of financial position date, the Fund does not have any assets or liabilities denominated in currencies
A
other than the Fund’s functional currency.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

11

Classification of financial assets
The following table summarises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the financial year by
SB-FRS 39 categories.
2016
S$
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Interest receivable

20,013,865
71,051
20,084,916

12

Fair value of financial instruments
 he carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to their short-term
T
nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the end of the financial year.
 he Fund does not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at the end of the financial year would be significantly different
T
from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
At the end of the financial period, the Fund does not have any other financial instruments carried at fair value.

13

Comparative figures
 his is the Fund’s first set of financial statements since it was established on 11 February 2015, hence no comparative figures
T
is available.
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Skillsfuture Jubilee Fund

(A Fund established as part of the Skills Development Fund and administered by Singapore Workforce Development Agency)
UEN No. T15CC0002L

Notes To The Financial Statements

For the financial period from 11 February 2015 to 31 March 2016

14

Authorisation of financial statements
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the WDA, which administers the Fund on 21 June 2016.
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Ministry of Education
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Established in the Republic of Singapore

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION LIFELONG LEARNING ENDOWMENT FUND
ESTABLISHED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE
ESTABLISHED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

KONG, LIM & PARTNERS LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Associated worldwide with JHI
13A MacKenzie Road Singapore 228676
Tel: 6227 4180 Fax: 6324 0213
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Ministry of Education
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Established in the Republic of Singapore

Statement by Management
In the opinion of the Management, the accompanying financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Lifelong
Learning Endowment Fund Act, Chapter 162A (the “Act”) so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Lifelong Learning
Endowment Fund for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

_______________________________
Ms Chan Lai Fung
Permanent Secretary (Education)
Ministry of Education

_______________________________
Tan Lin Teck
Divisional Director, Finance and Procurement
Ministry of Education
Date: 23 May 2016
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Ministry of Education on Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of receipts and expenditure for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the provisions of
the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund Act, Chapter 162A (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against
loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.
The Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund’s policy is to prepare the financial statements on the cash receipts and disbursements basis. On this
basis, revenue is recognised when received rather than when earned and expenses are recognised when paid rather than when incurred.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Ministry of Education on Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards, so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund as at 31 March
2016 and the receipts and expenditure of the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund for the year ended on that date.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Ministry of Education on Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Other Matter
The financial statements of the Fund for the year ended 31 March 2015 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on 21 May 2015.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund have been
properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and the receipts, expenditure and investment of monies and the acquisition and
disposal of assets by the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund have been done in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

_______________________________
KONG, LIM & PARTNERS LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
Date: 23 May 2016
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Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2016
Registered Office:
				
				

Ministry of Education
1 North Buona Vista Drive
Singapore 138675

						
Note

2016

2015

S$

S$

3

4,961,685,487

4,926,439,009

4

4,961,685,487

4,926,439,009

Accumulated Fund
Balance at end of the year
Represented by:
Funds with Accountant-General

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Statement of Receipts and Expenditure
For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2016

Note

2016

2015

S$

S$

Receipts during the year
Capital contribution from Government
Income from investments
Other receipts

5

-

500,000,000

197,057,560

193,456,705

2,301,599

907,343

199,359,159

694,364,048

160,829,995

139,963,499

3,278,886

5,467,491

Expenditure during the year
Grants disbursed

6

Marketing and promotion expenses
Administrative expenses
Surplus for the year
Accumulated fund balance brought
forward
Accumulated fund balance carried
forward

3

3,800

7,553

164,112,681

145,438,543

35,246,478

548,925,505

4,926,439,009

4,377,513,504

4,961,685,487

4,926,439,009

The annexed notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2016

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Ministry of Education on 23 May 2016.

1.

Domicile and Activities

	The Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund (the “Fund”) is established in Singapore. The Ministry of Education is appointed as the
Fund’s administrator. The address of the Ministry’s principal place of activity is at 1 North Buona Vista Drive, Singapore 138675.
	The Fund is set up by the Singapore Government (“the Government”) under the Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund Act, Chapter
162A (the “Act”) for the acquisition of skills and expertise by persons, and the development and upgrading of skills and expertise
of persons to enhance their employability; and the promotion of the acquisition, development and upgrading of skills and expertise
to enhance the employability of persons.
	The Fund, which came into operation with effect from 12 March 2001, had an initial capital of $500 million. The Government may
make further payments of capital money into the Fund from time to time. Only income earned from the Fund will be used. The
Fund is deemed to be a Government fund for the purposes of any written law in Singapore.
	The Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”) has been appointed as the programme manager of the Fund to receive
and deploy the grant for programmes that are congruent with the objectives of the Fund.
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Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2016

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars.
	In line with the Government’s accounting policy, the cash basis of accounting is adopted. On this basis, receipts are recognised
when received rather than earned and expenses are recognised when paid rather than when incurred.

3.

Accumulated fund

Capital contribution from
Government

Income from investments

Note

2016

2015

(a)

4,600,000,000

4,600,000,000

4,961,685,487

4,926,439,009

(b)

S$

361,685,487

S$

326,439,009

	(a)	This relates to capital money paid into the Fund by the Government from the Consolidated Revenue Account. Under
Section 4(4) of the Act, this amount shall not be used for any purpose other than for investment.
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Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2016

3.

Accumulated fund (continued)
(b)	This relates to investment income earned on the Fund balance. The investment income is arrived at after deducting
investment expenses, grants made to institutions and other expenses as approved under the Act.
Note

Income from investments

2016

2015

S$

S$

361,685,487

326,439,009

Past reserves protected

(c)

(344,062,248)

(208,377,813)

Income from investments available for expenditure

(d)

17,623,239

118,061,196

(c)

This relates to reserves which are protected as a result of Government requirements.

		Investment income earned from the Fund previously will be protected when there is a change-over in government. This
would ensure that the present government would only spend what it has earned in its term of office.
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Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2016

3.

Accumulated fund (continued) 		
(d)	This amount is available for payment of future approved expenses and distribution as grants to institutions to be applied
for the purpose of all or any of the following purposes as defined under the Act:

		

(i)	the provision of financial assistance or incentives to persons to acquire, develop or upgrade, whether in Singapore
or elsewhere, skills and expertise to enhance their employability;

		

(ii)	the research or development, whether in Singapore or elsewhere, in or of learning methods and technology to
enhance the acquisition, development or upgrading of such skills and expertise;

		

(iii)

		

(iv)	the provision of financial assistance or incentives to persons to carry out, whether in Singapore or elsewhere,
activities or programmes which are consistent with objects of the Fund;

		

(v)	the establishment, expansion or maintenance of facilities, whether in Singapore or elsewhere, to be used for
purposes consistent with the objects of the Fund; and

		

(vi)	such other purposes consistent with the objects of the Fund, whether carried out in Singapore or elsewhere, as
may be prescribed.

the promotion of the acquisition, development or upgrading of such skills and expertise;
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Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2016

4.

Funds with Accountant-General

	This represents funds held by the Accountant-General on behalf of the Fund. The Fund is allocated investment income based on
a fixed interest rate set for government endowment funds. The interest rate for FY 2015 is 4% (FY 2014: 4%).

5.

Other receipts

Refund of unused grant
Interest income
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2016

2015

S$

S$

1,994,853

698,340

306,746

209,003

2,301,599

907,343

Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2016

6.

Grants disbursed

	During the financial year, the Fund made disbursements to WDA for the administration of the funds for the following programmes:
2016

2015

S$

S$

Employment Facilitation Programmes (includes Spur-Jobs Scheme)

53,132,802

38,316,995

Development and Expansion of CET Centres

23,634,722

37,692,574

Outcome-based and Skills Upgrading Programmes for In-employment Workers

11,229,227

10,737,123

Place and Train Programmes/Professional Skills Programme/Professional Conversion Programme

1,670,670

1,195,628

WSQ Development, Implementation and Launch

3,834,924

3,668,106

128,747

30,595

Others (e.g. surveys, administration, minor projects)

49,281,970

47,703,510

WorkPro Programme

13,765,498

6,495,248

156,678,560

145,839,779

4,151,435

(5,876,280)

160,829,995

139,963,499

Expenditure

Promotion and Publicity (includes CET Promotion and HR Summit)

WDA – Refer to Note (a)
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Ministry of Manpower
Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements
For Financial Year Ended 31 March 2016
Note (a) – this is represented by:
Note
Grants disbursed by WDA out of unused funds received from the Fund in the previous
financial year
Unused portion of grants disbursed to WDA in the current financial year, available for
carry forward to the next financial year
(a)
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2016

2015

S$

S$

(2,915,555)

(8,791,835)

7,066,990

2,915,555

4,151,435

(5,876,280)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016
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The attached draft financial statements, which have
been prepared by management of the Company, are
subject to changes that may arise from the resolution
of outstanding audit matters which are set out in the
attached appendices and comments and adjustments
from our engagemaent quality assurance review. The
draft audit report included in the attached financial
statements should not be provided to any other party
or used for any purpose without our prior written
permission.

Skills Development Fund
Report and Financial Statements
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STATEMENT BY SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
WHICH ADMINISTERS SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
In our opinion,
(a)

the accompanying financial statements of Skills Development Fund (“SDF”), set out on pages 144 to 178 are properly drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306 (the “Act”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting
Standards (“SB-FRS”) so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of SDF as at 31 March 2016, and the
financial performance, changes in capital and accumulated surplus and cash flows of SDF for the financial year ended on that
date;

(b)

the receipts, expenditure and investment of moneys of SDF and the acquisition and disposal of assets by SDF during the financial
year have been in accordance with the provisions of this Act; and

(c)

proper accounting and other records have been kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

On behalf of the Singapore Workforce Development Agency, which administers SDF

Ng Cher Pong
Chief Executive

Singapore
22 July 2016
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Tan Wee Beng
Deputy Chief Executive

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Skills Development Fund (“SDF”), which comprise the statement of financial
position of SDF as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in capital and accumulated
surplus and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, as set out on pages 144 to 178. The SDF is administered by the Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The management of WDA is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of the Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306 (the “Act”) and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”), and for
such internal controls as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal controls relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of SDF are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and SB-FRS so as to
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of SDF as at 31 March 2016 and the financial performance, changes in capital
and accumulated surplus and cash flows of SDF for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Management’s Responsibility for Compliance with Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
The management of WDA is responsible for ensuring that the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal
of assets, are in accordance with the provisions of the Act. This responsibility includes implementing accounting and internal controls as
management determines are necessary to enable compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s compliance based on our audit of the financial statements. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. We planned and performed the compliance audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the receipts, expenditure, investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets, are in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.
Our compliance audit includes obtaining an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the receipts, expenditure, investment of
moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets; and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements from noncompliance, if any, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. Because of the
inherent limitations in any accounting and internal control system, non-compliances may nevertheless occur and not be detected.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on management’s
compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
SINGAPORE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Opinion
In our opinion:
(a)

the receipts, expenditure and investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of assets by SDF during the year ended 31
March 2016 are, in all material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and

(b)

proper accounting and other records have been kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
22 July 2016
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 March 2016

Note

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

6

1,033,816,138

748,062,023

Levy and other receivables

7

15,041,074

10,231,706

Grants disbursed in advance

8

11,504,021

5,164,797

Derivative financial instruments

9

1,605,027

756,438

10

56,216,891

93,354,017

1,118,183,151

857,568,981

Financial assets, held-to-maturity
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Financial assets, held-to-maturity

10

86,302,176

56,851,506

Financial assets, at fair value through profit or loss

11

102,915,658

304,480,870

189,217,834

361,332,376

1,307,400,985

1,218,901,357

Total non-current assets
Total assets
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 March 2016

Note

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

LIABILITY AND EQUITY
Current liability
Payables

12

19,894,253

6,459,687

13

871,138,696

871,138,696

416,368,036

341,302,974

1,287,506,732

1,212,441,670

1,307,400,985

1,218,901,357

Capital and accumulated surplus
Capital account
Accumulated surplus
Total capital and accumulated surplus

Total liability and equity
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 March 2016

Note

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Operating income

14

250,291,474

238,233,204

Other income

15

12,104,581

8,605,788

Fair value (losses) gains

11

(2,124,875)

7,546,297

  Net disbursements

(185,192,299)

(189,386,347)

    Disbursements

Expenditure

(185,612,901)

(192,589,804)

    Less: Disbursement refunds

420,602

3,203,457

Allowance for impairment loss on receivables

(13,814)

(24,193)

(5)

(34,830)

(185,206,118)

(189,445,370)

75,065,062

64,939,919

Others

Surplus for the year, representing total comprehensive income for the year
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Year ended 31 March 2016

At 1 April 2014

Capital account

Accumulated
surplus

Total

$

$

$

871,138,696

276,363,055

1,147,501,751

-   

64,939,919

64,939,919

871,138,696

341,302,974

1,212,441,670

-   

75,065,062

75,065,062

871,138,696

416,368,036

1,287,506,732

Net surplus for the year, representing total
    comprehensive income for the year
At 31 March 2015
Net surplus for the year, representing total
    comprehensive income for the year
At 31 March 2016
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended 31 March 2016

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

75,065,062

64,939,919

Operating activities
Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Allowance for impairment loss on receivables
Fair value losses (gains)
Interest income
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital
Levy and other receivables
Payables
Net cash from operating activities

13,814

24,193

2,124,875

(7,546,297)

(12,072,813)

(8,554,802)

65,130,938

48,863,013

(677,165)

2,174,999

77,888,339

51,979,222

(86,457,375)

-   

93,000,000

68,000,000

9,070,627

9,311,599

13,434,566

941,210

Investing activities
Purchase of financial assets, held-to-maturity
Proceeds on maturity of financial assets, held-to-maturity
Interest received
Proceeds on maturity of financial assets, at fair value through profit or loss
Net increase in financial assets under fund management
Net cash from investing activities
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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106,253,756

-   

92,337,992

(9,086,402)

214,205,000

68,225,197

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended 31 March 2016

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Financing activity
Grants disbursed, representing net cash used in financing activity
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Note 6)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note 6)

(6,339,224)

(10,834,407)

285,754,115

109,370,012

748,062,023

638,692,011

1,033,816,138

748,062,023

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016

1

GENERAL
 he Skills Development Fund (the “SDF”) was established in the Republic of Singapore on 1 October 1979 as a Government
T
fund under the Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306. With effect from 1 September 2003, the administration of the SDF was
transferred from the Ministry of Manpower (“MOM”) to the Singapore Workforce Development Agency (“WDA”). The SDF is
established for the following purposes:
(a)

the promotion, development and upgrading of skills and expertise of persons preparing to join the workforce, persons in
the workforce and persons rejoining the workforce;

(b)

the retraining of retrenched persons; and

(c)

the provision of financial assistance by grants, loans or otherwise for the above-mentioned purposes.

The SDF which is administered by the WDA is exempted from income tax under Section 13(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act.
SDF’s registered office and principal place of operations is No.1 Marina Boulevard, #16-01, One Marina Boulevard, Singapore
018989. The financial statements are expressed in Singapore dollars.
 he financial statements of the Fund for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 were authorised for issue by the Board of
T
Singapore Workforce Development Agency on 22 July 2016.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 ASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - The financial statements are prepared in
B
accordance with the historical cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, and Statutory Board Financial Reporting Standards (“SB-FRS”), including Interpretations of SB-FRS
(“INT SB-FRS”) and Guidance Notes.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
 air value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
F
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the SDF takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
which market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
 air value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
F
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of SB-FRS 102 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of SB-FRS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in SB-FRS 2 Inventories or value in use in SB-FRS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:
•

 evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
L
at the measurement date;

•

 evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
L
either directly or indirectly; and

•

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS – On 1 April 2015, SDF has adopted all the new and revised SB-FRSs and
INT SB-FRSs and SB-FRS Guidance Notes that are effective from that date and are relevant to its operations. The adoption of
these new/revised SB-FRSs, INT SB-FRSs and SB-FRS Guidance Notes does not result in changes to the SDF’s accounting
policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior years.
 anagement has considered and is of the view that the adoption of the SB-FRSs, INT SB-FRSs and amendments to SB-FRSs
M
that were issued as at the date of authorisation of these financial statements but effective only in future periods will not have a
material impact on the financial statements of the SDF in the period of their initial adoption.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on SDF’s statement of financial position
when SDF becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest
income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.  
Income and expenses are recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial instruments “at
fair value through profit or loss”.

Financial assets
All financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or
loss which are initially measured at fair value.
 inancial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets “at fair value through profit or loss”, “held-toF
maturity investments” and “loans and receivables”. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Financial assets, at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
 financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future. Financial
A
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are managed and their performances are
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented investment strategy. Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are presented as current assets if they are expected to
be realised within 12 months after the end of each reporting period.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016
Financial assets, held-to-maturity
Financial assets, held-to-maturity, are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. These are presented as non-current assets, except for those
maturing within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and are presented as current assets.
 ubsequent to initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
S
method less impairment, with revenue recognised on an effective yield basis.
Levy and other receivables
 evy and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is
L
recognised by applying the effective interest method, except for short-term receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial.
Impairment of financial assets
 inancial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
F
reporting period.  Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted.
 or financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
F
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
levy and other receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a levy and other
receivables is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the income or expenditure. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
income or expenditure.
 or financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
F
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through income or expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Derecognition of financial assets
 DF derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the
S
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.  If SDF neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, SDF recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.  If SDF retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, SDF continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
SDF derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
 ERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - A derivative financial instrument is initially recognised at its fair value on the date the
D
contract is entered into and is subsequently carried at its fair value.
 he carrying amount of a derivative designated as a hedge is presented as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining expected
T
life of the hedged item is more than 12 months and as a current asset or liability if the remaining expected life of the hedged item
is less than 12 months. The fair value of a trading derivative is presented as a current asset or liability.
 xternal fund managers enter into derivative financial instruments on behalf of the SDF. These derivatives financial instruments
E
do not qualify for hedge accounting. Fair value changes for such derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are included in income or expenditure in the financial year when the changes arise.
INCOME RECOGNITION - Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Skills Development Levy
Income from Skills Development Levy is recognised on an accrual basis.
Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS - The financial statements of SDF are measured and presented in Singapore dollars,
which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which SDF operates (its functional currency).
In preparing the financial statements of SDF, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.  At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the end of the reporting period.  Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
 xchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in income
E
or expenditure for the period.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
cash flows comprise cash balances and deposits placed with the Accountant-General’s Department (“AGD”) and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
 nder the Accountant-General Circular No.4/2009 dated 2 November 2009, SDF is required to participate in the Centralised
U
Liquidity Management Framework (“CLM”). Under the CLM, all bank accounts maintained with selected banks will be linked up
with AGD’s bank accounts such that excess available cash can be automatically aggregated for central management on a daily
basis. These balances are included in cash and cash equivalents as “Centralised Liquidity Management (“CLM”) deposits held
with AGD”.
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3	CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of SDF’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
 he estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
T
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
 anagement is of the opinion that there are no critical judgements or significant estimates that would have a significant effect on
M
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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4	FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT
(a)

Categories of financial instruments
The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period:
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

142,519,067

150,205,523

                cash and cash equivalents)

1,048,857,212

758,293,729

                Financial assets at amortised cost

1,191,376,279

908,499,252

102,915,658

304,480,870

1,605,027

756,438

1,295,896,964

1,213,736,560

19,894,253

6,459,687



Financial assets

                Held-to-maturity investments
                Levy and other receivables (including

                Fair value through profit or loss (designated as at FVTPL)
                Derivative financial instruments not designated in hedge
                    accounting relationships

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
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(b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
The SDF is subject to market risk (including interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
 DF has adopted risk management practices, which set out its general risk management framework as discussed
S
below. In addition, the Investment Committee of WDA is also involved in formulating investment policies and guidelines,
reviewing investment strategy and performance of the fund managers and monitoring the results of the investments. The
investment risk analysis is also included in the risk treatment plan that is reviewed semi-annually by the Audit and Risk
Committee.

		Funds with fund managers
In connection with the funds placed with fund managers, the funds placed with fund managers are exposed to a variety
of financial risk: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and price risk).
 he fund managers appointed are held responsible in achieving the investment objectives set forth in their respective
T
investment management agreements. All income and realised capital gains are to be reinvested by the fund managers
unless otherwise instructed by WDA.
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		(i)

Interest rate risk management
 DF has cash balances placed with reputable banks and financial institutions and deposits held with AGD and
S
has limited exposure to interest rate risk as variable rate interest-bearing assets are mainly of a short-term nature
(Note 6).

		(ii)

Foreign exchange risk management
SDF has exposure to foreign currency risk as a result of investment in foreign currency denominated assets and
liabilities.
 t the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities and derivative financial instruments
A
managed by fund managers denominated in currencies other than SDF’s functional currency are as follows:

2015/2016

US Dollar
Hong Kong Dollar

Assets

Liabilities

Derivative
financial
instruments

$

$

$

$

64,732,080

-   

1,581,155

66,313,235

3,760,631

-   

23,872

3,784,503

Total

Philippines Peso

1,055,308

-   

-   

1,055,308

Thailand Baht

1,931,120

(22,754)

-   

1,908,366

710,521

-   

-   

710,521

Korean Won

Indonesian Rupiah

1,660,403

-   

-   

1,660,403

New Taiwan Dollar

1,125,426

-   

-   

1,125,426

539,639

(338,110)

-   

201,529

Australian Dollar

2,744

-   

-   

2,744

Japanese Yen

1,128
1,171

-   
-   

-   
-   

1,128
1,171

Malaysian Ringgit

Canadian Dollar
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2014/2015

Euro
US Dollar
British Pound

Assets

Liabilities

Derivative
financial
instruments

$

$

$

$

2,835,056

-   

13,874

2,848,930

248,046,868

-   

744,962

248,791,830

2,119,031

-   

(143)

2,118,888

Total

Norwegian Krone

1,719,459

-   

(2,255)

1,717,204

Hong Kong Dollar

8,525,656

-   

-   

8,525,656

Philippines Peso

2,913,916

-   

-   

2,913,916

Thailand Baht

7,322,803

(572,582)

-   

6,750,221

Indonesian Rupiah

2,195,257

-   

-   

2,195,257

Korean Won

3,123,068

-   

-   

3,123,068

New Taiwan Dollar

1,635,229

-   

-   

1,635,229

Swedish Krona

848,084

-   

-   

848,084

Malaysian Ringgit

715,897

-   

-   

715,897

 he surplus of SDF will increase by $3,838,217 (2014/2015 : $14,109,209) if there is 5% increase in the relevant
T
foreign currencies against the functional currency of SDF. If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 5% against
the functional currency as at the year end, impact on surplus/deficit for the year would be vice versa.
 % is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
5
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
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		(iii)

Credit risk management
 redit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty or counterparty to a financial instrument will default on its
C
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to SDF.
 DF’s major classes of financial assets are cash and deposits with AGD, cash and bank balances, levy and other
S
receivables, financial assets held-to-maturity and at fair value through profit or loss. The maximum exposure to
credit risk for each class of financial assets is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented
on the statement of financial position.
 he fund managers appointed by SDF each have a credit policy in place and exposure to credit risk is monitored
T
on an on-going basis. SDF limits its credit risk exposure in respect of investments in debt securities by restricting
the fund managers to invest in debt securities that have a sound credit rating from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s.

(iv)

Equity price risk management
 DF is exposed to equity risks arising from equity investments designated as fair value through profit or loss
S
(FVTPL), managed by fund managers. SDF diversifies its portfolio in accordance with its investment mandate to
manage exposure to fluctuations in equity prices.
Further details of these equity investments can be found in Note 11 to the financial statements.
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			Equity price sensitivity
 he sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
T
reporting period.
In respect of the FVTPL equity investments, if the underlying equity prices had been 5% higher/lower, the
surplus of SDF will increase/decrease by $617,948 (2014/2015 : surplus of SDF would increase/decrease by
$2,229,306). SDF’s sensitivity to equity prices has not changed significantly from the prior year.
(v)

Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the SDF will not be able to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
SDF manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient funds to enable it to meet its operational requirements.
SDF’s financial liabilities are expected to mature within one year.
 ll quoted debt and equity securities are considered realisable, as they are listed on the major stock exchanges.
A
The fund managers are required to comply with the restrictions and limitations as stipulated in the investment
mandate.
 he table below summarises SDF’s assets, liabilities and financial instruments, categorised by the earlier of
T
contractual repricing or maturity dates and depicts SDF’s exposure to interest rate risk at year end.
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			Liquidity and interest risk analyses
 he inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets and liabilities is necessary in order to understand
T
SDF’s liquidity risk management as SDF’s liquidity risk is managed on a net asset and liability basis. The tables
below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including
interest that will be earned on those assets except where SDF anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different
period and financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which SDF can be required to pay. The adjustment
column represents the possible future cash flows attributable to the instrument included in the maturity analysis
which are not included in the carrying amount of the financial asset/liability on the statement of financial position.

Weighted average
effective interest rate

Within 1 year

Within 2 to
5 years

After 5
years

Adjustment

Total

$

$

$

$

$

-   

1,048,857,212

-   

-   

-    1,048,857,212

-   

1,605,027

-   

-   

-   

1,605,027

2.9

62,997,632

42,066,317

-   

(2,148,291)

102,915,658

2.8

56,717,435

25,114,708

73,792,537

(13,105,613)

142,519,067

1,170,177,306

67,181,025

73,792,537

(15,253,904)

1,295,896,964

19,894,253

-

-

-

19,894,253

%
2015/2016
Financial assets
    Loans and receivables
    Derivative
        financial instruments
    Financial assets, at
        fair value through
        profit or loss
    Financial assets,
        held-to-maturity
Total
Financial liabilities

-
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Weighted average
effective interest rate
%

Within 1 year

Within 2 to
5 years

After 5
years

Adjustment

Total

$

$

$

$

$

2014/2015
    Loans and receivables

-   

758,293,729

-   

-   

-   

758,293,729

-   

756,438

-   

-   

-   

756,438

3.4

199,840,002

112,305,158

-   

(7,664,290)

304,480,870

2.4

94,072,098

58,805,072

-   

(2,671,647)

150,205,523

1,052,962,267

171,110,230

-

(10,335,937)

1,213,736,560

6,459,687

-

-

-

6,459,687

    Derivative
        financial instruments
    Financial assets, at
        fair value through
        profit or loss
    Financial assets,
        held-to-maturity
Total
Financial liabilities
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(vi)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities as reported on the statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.
The fair values of other classes of financial assets are disclosed in the respective notes.
 he fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
T
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices.
SDF classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy as detailed in Note 2 which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured based on Level 1 on the fair value hierarchy.
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy in the period.

			Derivative financial instruments
 t the end of each reporting period, the derivative financial instruments (Note 9) represent foreign exchange
A
forward contracts managed by fund managers which will be settled within the next financial year. The foreign
exchange forward contracts are measured based on Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy and are valued using the
discounted cash flow technique whereby future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates (from
observable forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and contract forward rates, discounted at
a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties.
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		(c)

Capital risk management policies and objectives
SDF’s objectives when managing capital are to ensure that it is adequately capitalised and that it fulfils the
objects for which moneys of the SDF may be applied under the Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306.
 DF is not subject to any capital requirements under the Skills Development Levy Act, Cap. 306 or any other
S
externally imposed capital requirements.

5

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Some of the transactions and arrangements are with related parties and the effect of these on the basis determined between the
parties is reflected in these financial statements. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand unless
otherwise stated.
The company entered into the following significant transactions with its related parties during the year:

Disbursements to related parties
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2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

86,323,412

76,156,184

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT FUND
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31 March 2016

6

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

    - Held by the SDF

47,801,613

22,876,045

    - Held by fund managers (Note 11)

97,643,662

2,731,661

888,370,863

722,454,317

1,033,816,138

748,062,023

Cash at bank

Centralised Liquidity Management deposits held with AGD

(i)

With effect from financial year 2009/2010, SDF is required to participate in the Centralised Liquidity Management by the AGD
under AGD Circular 4/2009. Deposits, which are interest- bearing, are centrally managed by AGD and are available to the
statutory board upon request and earns interest at the average rate of 1.26% (2014/2015 : 0.85%) per annum.

(i) 
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7

LEVY AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

    Net refund of assistance previously disbursed.
        and underpaid levy receivable

65,405

79,207

    Levy collection due from Central Provident Fund Board (“CPF”)

1,935,703

1,875,908

    Interest receivable from bonds

8,741,813

4,595,796

    Other receivables due from National Productivity Fund

2,482,482

-   

-   

1,848,262

52,423

22,832

    Other receivables due from WDA (Note 5)
    Other receivables
    Deposits
    Amount due from fund managers (Note 11)

-   

1,350

1,311,168

145,920

452,080

1,662,431

15,041,074

10,231,706

    Dividend/Interest receivables from
        investment by fund managers (Note 11)
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8

GRANTS DISBURSED (RECEIVED) IN ADVANCE
In areas permissible, the SDF fund is being drawn down to finance WDA’s operations to meet the increasing demands and needs
of WDA’s workforce development efforts. As WDA’s activities and operations have expanded rapidly to react to greater economic
downturns and uncertainties impacting the Singapore workforce, management has obtained approval from the Board of WDA to
fund expenditures on manpower, other operating expenditures and development costs for selected Continuing Education and
Training (“CET”) functions using the SDF.
These expenditures are for manpower and operating overheads and are related to the delivery of specific CET programmes.
 uring the current financial year, WDA has drawn down grants in excess of the actual expenditures incurred. The excess will be
D
offset against 2016/2017 projection of expenditure and is recorded as grants disbursed in advance by the SDF.
 uring the previous financial year, WDA had drawn down grants in excess of the actual expenditures incurred. The excess was
D
carried forward to the current financial year to offset against current year expenditure.
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9

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
On demand or within 1 year

Gross settled: Foreign exchange forward contracts

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

73,189,463

247,324,455

The derivative financial instruments comprise fair value gain of the currency forwards for the investment managed by external fund
managers.
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10

FINANCIAL ASSETS, HELD-TO-MATURITY
At fair value (1)

At amortised cost (2)

2015/2016

2014/2015

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

$

$

Singapore Government Bonds

86,169,800

44,818,400

83,726,619

44,786,056

Statutory Board Bonds

34,006,600

105,153,900

34,016,044

105,419,467

Corporate Bonds

24,776,850

-   

24,776,404

-   

144,953,250

149,972,300

142,519,067

150,205,523

56,216,891

93,354,017

Represented by:
    Current portion
    Non-current portion

86,302,176

56,851,506

142,519,067

150,205,523

(1)

The fair values of quoted bonds are based on the last bid prices as at the end of each respective reporting period.

(2)

 The quoted bonds have fixed interest rates ranging from 1.01% to 4.9% (2014/2015 : 1.01% to 4.17%) per annum and have
maturity periods ranging from 1 to 78 months (2014/2015 : 1 to 18 months).
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11

FINANCIAL ASSETS, AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Quoted equity securities

12,358,963

44,586,116

Quoted debt securities

90,556,695

259,894,754

102,915,658

304,480,870

Quoted securities at fair value through profit or loss

The funds are managed by and placed with external fund managers. The items measured at fair value through profit or loss
have been included in the respective current assets and liabilities in SDF’s statement of financial position as follows:
2015/2016
Quoted equity securities

12,358,963

44,586,116

Quoted debt securities

90,556,695

259,894,754

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)

97,643,662

2,731,661

Levy and other receivables (Note 7)

1,763,248

1,808,351

Derivative financial instruments (Note 9)

1,605,027

756,438

Payables (Note 12)

174

|

2014/2015

WDA Annual Report 2015/16

(3,214,664)

(685,758)

200,712,931

309,091,562
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The terms of the management agreements provide for the following:
(a)

Management fee payable on a quarterly basis; and

(b)

 Performance fee payable to fund managers (determined at the end of the relevant fund management period) for outperformance against relevant benchmarks.

Movement

At beginning of the year
Proceeds on maturity of fund
Fair value (losses) gains
At the end of the year

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

309,091,562

301,545,265

(106,253,756)

-   

(2,124,875)

7,546,297

200,712,931

309,091,562
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12

PAYABLES
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Assistance committed and payable and overpaid levy refundable
    - Related parties (Note 5)
    - Non-related parties

736,505

767,312

3,275,982

4,896,434

89,919

80,862

23,523

29,321

12,229,871

-   

Other payables
    - Related parties (Note 5)
    - Non-related parties
Amount due to WDA
Amount due to Lifelong Learning Endowment Fund
Amount due to fund managers (Note 11)

13

323,789

-   

3,214,664

685,758

19,894,253

6,459,687

CAPITAL ACCOUNT
The capital account represents the Singapore Government’s capital contribution for the establishment of the Skills Development Fund.
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14

OPERATING INCOME
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

229,236,389

217,893,804

7,514,639

7,253,043

13,538,553

13,085,481

1,893

876

250,291,474

238,233,204

Skills development levy (“SDL”) from:
    - Private sector
    - Statutory boards
    - Ministries and Organs of State
Others

 DL contribution is payable by employers for all employees up to the first $4,500 of gross monthly remuneration at the rate of
S
0.25% or $2, whichever is higher.

15

OTHER INCOME
2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

Interest income from:
    - Bank deposits
    - CLM deposits held with AGD
    - Financial assets, held-to-maturity
Others

107

78

10,503,072

5,687,139

1,569,634

2,867,585

31,768

50,986

12,104,581

8,605,788
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16 COMMITMENTS
The following represents the training assistance granted by WDA and funded by the SDF and the grants committed by SDF
for the development of CET Campuses at the end of the financial reporting period. The actual disbursement of the training
assistance grant commitments are subject to the fulfilment of the agreed conditions by the grant recipients.

Training assistance committed for disbursement
CET campuses development committed for disbursement

2015/2016

2014/2015

$

$

415,927,115

401,632,498

48,803,940

52,057,602

464,731,055

453,690,100

 raining assistance grant commitments are administered through SkillsNet and SkillsConnect Systems and are derived from
T
gross commitments less disbursements and unutilised grants. Unutilised grants are classified as grants that are more than 120
days from the programme end date in the SkillsConnect System and grants that are withdrawn from the system by system users
in the SkillsNet System.
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